
           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
  
  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  tthhee  WWhhoollee  ––  66::3300  pp..mm..  
RReegguullaarr  CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  MMeeeettiinngg  ––  77::0000  pp..mm..    

 
  

 CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMBBEERRSS              MMAAYYOORR 
  Richard Holm             488-1776 Douglas Isaacson 488-8584 
  Sharron Hunter- Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem  488-4282                 
    RRoonnaalldd  JJoonneess--  MMaayyoorr  PPrroo  TTeemm                                      448888--33557799  
  Thomas McGhee             455-0010 
  Derrick Nelson             490-2446  
  Bryce Ward- Deputy Mayor Pro Tem         488-7314   CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK 

                Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583   
 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
  
2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag –  

 
3. Invocation    
  
4. Approval of the Agenda 

 
5. Approval of the Minutes  

  
6.      Communications from the Mayor 
 Proclamations 
 Women’s History Month 
 National Society Daughters of the American Revolution 
  
7.      Council Member Questions of the Mayor 
 
8.      Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 
         Clerk  
 
9.      Ongoing Projects Report 

 
10.    Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

CCIITTYY  OOFF  NNOORRTTHH  PPOOLLEE  

AAllaasskkaa  
 o 

RREEGGUULLAARR  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEEETTIINNGG    
MMoonnddaayy,,  MMaarrcchh  55,,  22001122  

 
 

  
  
  
  



 
 
 
11.    Old Business 
 

a.  Ordinance 12-01, An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public 
Services, Section 13.08, Administrative Provisions 
 

b.  Ordinance 12-02, An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public 
Services, Section 13.12, Customer Service 
 

c.   Ordinance 12-03, An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public 
Services, Section 13.16, Water Services 
 

d.  Ordinance 12-04, An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public 
Services, Section 13.24, Utility Rates 
 

e.   Ordinance 12-05, An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public 
Services, Section 13.28, Lien On Real Estate For Delinquent Utility Payments And 
Account Resolution Procedures 

 
 
12.   New Business 
 
 a.  Request from North Pole Economic Development Corporation for 4th Quarter Bed Tax 
 
 b.  Request from City Clerk for funding to attend the IIMC Conference in Portland, Oregon 
             from May 19 – 24 
 
 c.  Ordinance 12-06, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.04, Administrative Code 
 
 d.  Ordinance 12-07, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.12, Building Code 
 
 e.  Ordinance 12-08, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.20, Residential Code 
 
 f.  Ordinance 12-09, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.28, Mechanical Code 
 
 g.  Ordinance 12-10, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.36, Electrical Code 
 
 h.  Ordinance 12-11, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.42, Plumbing Code 
 
 i.  Ordinance 12-12, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.50, Fire Code 
 



 j.  Ordinance 12-13, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.82, Fuel Gas Code 
 
 k.  Ordinance 12-14, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole Amending Title 15, Building 
             & Construction, Chapter 15.90, Energy Code 
 
 l.  Resolution 12-03, A Resolution urging the Alaska Legislature to refrain from enacting 
             any legislation that would increase the State’s pension liability 
 
 m.  Resolution 12-04, A Resolution of the North Pole City Council to Adopt The Hartford’s 
              specimen 457(b) Plan Document without any modifications 
 
 n.  Resolution 12-05, A Resolution of the North Pole City Council to Approve Agreement 
             for Bond Counsel Services, 2012 Refunding Bonds 
 
13.    Council Comments 
 
14.    Adjournment 
 
The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing 
impaired individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours notice to arrange for this 
service.  All such requests are subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council 
meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are available for listening or duplication at the City 
Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is located in City Hall, 125 
Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.  



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

1 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

 
Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 
 
A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, February 21, 2012 in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 
 
CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
Mayor Isaacson called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, February 21, 2012 to order 
at 7:00 p.m. 
 
There were present:     Absent/Excused 
Mr. Holm      Excused 
Ms. Hunter       
Mr. Jones       
Mr. McGhee       
Mr. Nelson      Excused  
Mr. Ward         
Mayor Isaacson      
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 
Led by Mayor Isaacson 
  
INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Mr. Ward 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of February 21, 2012 
 
Seconded by Mr. Jones 
 
Discussion 
None 
 
PASSED 
YES –5– Ward, Jones, Hunter, McGhee, Isaacson  
NO – 0 -  
Abstained- 0 
 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the minutes of February 6, 2012  
 
Seconded by Mr. Ward 
 
 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

2 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

Discussion 
None 
 
PASSED 
YES –5– Ward, Jones, Hunter, McGhee, Isaacson  
NO – 0 -  
Abstained- 0 
 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 
Communication Highlights from the Mayor for the period ending Feb 21, 2012 
GENERAL:  

• Alaska Municipal League (AML) Meetings & Legislative Report:  Mr. Jones and I attended the AML 
Board meeting on Feb 7. Among the topics of discussion prior to the AML Legislative Session was the 
location of future annual meetings. There was some discussion that it should only be in Anchorage due to 
what some described as cramped quarters in Fairbanks and the impossibility of holding it in Juneau. 
However, Ron and I argued for retaining Fairbanks. This is not the first time this discussion has come up 
at AML, but must be continually argued by the facts which still favor alternating the annual meeting 
between Fairbanks and Anchorage (which is usually held at the Capt. Cook Hotel and has its own set of 
constraints on the League). Upon my return to Fairbanks I had an initial discussion with FCVB officials 
to ensure certain issues were adequately addressed.  The other item is future meetings: Ron and I will be 
travelling to Anchorage on May 11, paid for by AML, to attend a Board meeting. And for the Summer 
meeting in Bethel, we were encouraged to book reservations now. Council Members: Please let me or 
Kathy Weber know as soon as possible if you are making this important meeting where we do the initial 
work of making sure our community’s priorities are addressed in the League’s legislative priorities and 
develop a network of support with the other cities. 
 
During my week in Juneau, I met with many different legislators and their staff. Because several issues 
are dominating the discussions, including the cost of energy, the gasline, and oil production taxation, 
capital projects were not on anyone’s radar. We were encouraged to keep monitoring the discussions and 
to be prepared to revisit the Capital in late March, if necessary. 
 
As to the cost of energy, I have previously emailed Council as to the various alternatives being pursued. I 
floated a discussion point that would take Fairbanks out of the Power Cost Equalization (PCE) formula 
and be included as a PCE recipient until GVEA is able to truck natural gas to their North Pole power 
plant. Some locals and many legislators objected because of the "expense" and because the thought that a 
$30-$35 per month reduction wouldn't be enough to motivate someone who's leaving to stay.  However, 
when GVEA trucks in natural gas, they're only calculating a 10% electric bill reduction, which may 
translate for many between $20 to $40 more or less--so being included for a short time in PCE would 
help. 
 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

3 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

Rep Tammie Wilson is working on getting more power transmission lines constructed between Healy and 
Bradley Lake, which would provide GVEA with less expensive hydro once the Bradley Lake expansions 
are done--that could take a couple years to build. And Sen Joe Thomas has introduced SB 203 (emailed to 
Council) that would spend 9 cents on the dollar from surplus revenue anticipated this year and give 
vouchers for 250 gals of heating oil, the natural gas btu equivalent, or for 1,500 kw of electriciy. There is 
a provision for those who don't pay directly to exchange the voucher for $250. It also requires the state to 
analyze on-going relief options and to make recommendations to the legislature by October 1, 2012. This 
has apparent strong support as nine of twenty senators have co-sponsored the bill. 
 
Editorializing here, I didn’t find any legislator who didn’t agree  that the best solution is investment in 
infrastructure that would get Fairbanks affordable energy--not simply access to natural gas, but natural 
gas and hydro, etc, at a delivery-to-your-door cost that residents can afford and that would incentivize 
more businesses to locate to the Interior, especially mining and manufacturing companies which would 
employ a lot more people in jobs that pay well, enabling our citizens to afford the inflationary economic 
bumps these days. And refreshingly, there is some talk by the Governor and some Legislators, consistent 
with Alaska’s Constitution, to make decisions that are consistent as Owners of our resources so that the 
investments made and encouraged are done from a perspective that enables us to settle our land, develop 
our natural resources in a way that doesn't give all the raw material to other countries' workers to develop, 
and in a manner consistent with use of resources now and for decades to come. Although the talk is yet a 
whisper, at least the conversation has begun.  Too often, the state invests through our Permanent Fund in 
infrastructure that could benefit Alaskans, e.g., gas treatment plants in Texas, but doesn't invest in Alaska 
where we can put our own people sustainably to work. Let's change our thinking. Let's be Alaskans First! 
 
And while I’m editorializing, consider that Anchorage benefits from 40 years of stranded gas in the Cook 
Inlet that has historically been priced below market value. It's a pricing strategy that should be applied to 
all in-State use of oil and gas owned by the State, which will spur development and encourage private 
sector growth and allow families to earn wages that allow them to afford to live in Alaska--wherever they 
chose to live. That's what our Alaska Constitution tasks the Legislature to ensure (see Article 8, section 
2). I’m not asking for government employees to lose their jobs, I’m asking for a dramatic increase of 
private sector jobs—the basis for true wealth development in our Country, or so it used to be. 
 
Because of the DOD announcement regarding Eielson, that became a two day topic where I, and Ron, 
scoured the Capital building trying to get the Legislature more fully engaged and more rapidly responding 
to the Governor’s request for $300,000 to hire high level consultants who have access to the highest 
decision makers in Washington DC. The Senate did pass CS for SJR 14, which I have emailed to Council, 
urging the DOD ―to protect Alaska’s military bases and to keep the number of military personnel in the 
state intact for the defense and protection of the state and the United States.‖  More on this discussion in 
the next bulleted topic. 
 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

4 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

• The Status of Eielson:   I’ve attended numerous meetings and have spoke with our Congressional 
Delegation, USAF Chief of Staff, Eielson leadership, the Governor, Lt. Governor, members of AMFAST, 
community leaders and former 3- and 4-star generals regarding the announcement of moving the F16’s 
from Eielson to Joint Base Elmendorf Richardson (JBER). I’ve attached both the News Miner’s take on 
the meetings and notes that Jim Dodson of FEDC provided. The bottom line:  

 This is not a base closure (if it was, we and affected service members would be receiving federal 
assistance funds), this is a force structure re-alignment in response to the President’s requirement 
to reduce the DOD budget by over $480 Billion.  

 There will be a survey team coming up in the next 30 days to evaluate whether the perceived 
savings will be actual savings.  

o This occurred during the last 2005 BRAC and the results were that the savings would not 
be realized, which kept Eielson open.  

o Today, Congressman Young speculated that in the interest of saving money, the decision 
makers simply re-opened the 2005 BRAC without looking other pertinent information. 
He stated that he will not tell the DOD how to do their job, but will hold them 
accountable for their expenditures and national safety. 

o Locally, we have not yet been told HOW we will be given access to this survey team to 
ensure they are examining ALL available and pertinent data. 

  General Schwartz, USAF Chief of Staff, stated that Eielson will not see any transfers of pilots 
and planes until the summer of 2013 and movement of 1600 military and civilians by October of 
2013. As reported before, DOD expects to see savings by FY2015 (Oct 2014 – Sept 2015). 

 General Schwartz also stated that of the 3100 total force at Eielson, only 1500 would remain, of 
those, the 168th National Guard Wing will not be reduced, there would be 600 active military and 
300 civilians remaining. 

 Eielson would go to an ―active‖ status, open 8 hours/day, 5 days/week, and concessions would 
have to be made for Guard drill weekends.  However, he didn’t elaborate on how the active 
Guard mission as the refueling pump at this end of the world—a 24/7 requirement—would be 
accomplished.  

 When asked about future missions for Eielson, while not ruling out the F36’s locating here in 
2020, General Schwartz replied that right now, the only consideration is to cut. 

 Locally, Mayor Hopkins is submitting an ordinance to approve funding a contract with the some 
of the consultants who successfully assisted the Keep Eielson Open efforts in 2005, and is 
forming a ―Tiger Team‖ comprised of the local mayors and certain other community leaders, the 
goal for both is to directly communicate with DOD officials and ensure the community’s 
information is incorporated in evaluating the Air Force mission.  

 
There are many moving parts right now, and while it is likely, it is not a foregone conclusion that the 
F16s will actually move, or if they do what the status of Eielson will be. A warm base is not tenable either 
for the Air Force or for the local community. If the base closes, the community—and it has been variously 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

5 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

asserted that this means North Pole—should acquire the base and efforts should be made to make 
commercial and industrial use of it. But we’re a long way from that discussion. I’ll keep you posted. 
 

• Arctic Winter Games (AWG) 2014 Host Society travel to Whitehorse:  As an informational item, I was 
scheduled to travel to Whitehorse with the AWG 2014 Host Society to observe and learn from the AWG 
2012 but due to the escalation of Energy issues and the proposed Eielson Force Restructuring, I have 
decided not to attend. This is still an event that is in the best interests of North Pole to promote and I will 
continue my involvement on the Society Board on behalf of the City. 

 

• The Status of Energy Relief and Projects:    In addition to my comments above, several other items: 
1. I have emailed to Council and others the Preliminary Natural Gas Distribution Study for review. Keep 
in mind, the product is an initial 30-day look, not a finished product. The goal is to provide the 
Legislature with some factual data in order to secure funding for a build-out that would enable our 
residents to have maximum capability to connect to natural gas. The study shows the build-out can reach 
80% of our population within 5 years. If you would like a copy of this report, go to www.  
2, As to getting our GVEA bill reduced, perhaps we as coop members need to petition the Board to get a 
full accounting of this dramatic raise. GVEA leadership attributes the raise to the higher cost of running 
diesel, but it may be that operating or development costs might be able to be trimmed in order to provide 
rate payers some relief.  I will be speaking with Mr. Newton to discuss this on Wednesday of this week. 
 
• Gas Pumping and Pricing in North Pole:  You may notice that Tesoro is changing out its 
pumps. This is in response to discussions with my office regarding the non-functioning of the old 
pumps. I have had multiple discussions with Regional and State managers on the pricing of their 
fuel and how they are losing revenue by not inducing the more than 21,000 vehicles who pass by 
their store every day (according to ADOT&PF 2010 ADT counts). Their pricing strategy has us 
as a much smaller community, and formerly, the state manager stated that Tesoro customers 
would just go down the road to a Tesoro station in Fairbanks! You and I know differently.  I am 
working on strategies that will encourage Tesoro to be more competitive in their pricing to 
benefit themselves and North Pole economics. 
 
• Various Meetings: included going weekly to NPMS and helping with announcements and 
giving ―Words of Wisdom.‖  
 
• FMATS: the Fairbanks Metropolitan Area Transportation System (FMATS) Policy Committee 
met over two days, February 15 & 16. The first day was spent on decisions affecting the right of 
way between the Cushman and new Barnette bridges which will have some beautifications 
added. A committee has been established who will make recommendations to FMATS Policy 
Committee within the year. The second day had decisions being made on various other projects. 
The sidewalk along St. Nicholas is still projected for construction in 2014. This summer will still 
see construction of sidewalks / bike paths throughout the city. Also of great concern is the status 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

6 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

of FMATS. It has been a valuable tool enabling the local communities to push forward a number 
of transportation projects.  Both the US House and US Senate have transportation bills that affect 
both the status of MPO’s the size of FMATS and reductions to overall transportation dollars 
coming to the State.  
 
MEDIA: 
 
Feb 11 & 18 Mayor Isaacson was on KJNP (1170 AM, 100.3 FM) 8 – 9 a.m. ―Over the Coffee 
Cup.‖  I was also interviewed by the News Miner. 
 
UPCOMING (see above for other events, dates, and times) 
 
• February 25-26, 10 a.m.: Mt. McKinley Bank North Pole Sled Dog Championships, Skijoring 
& Slippery Salmon Slalom (fundraiser for Itadori Sister City). $15,000 PURSE! First team 
leaves the starting line at 11 AM on Saturday & 10 AM on Sunday with Skijoring. Slippery 
Salmon Slalom begins at 2 pm Saturday and Sunday. Start/Finish line @ Morning Star Park 
(behind Star of the North Charter School). See Flier Attached. 
• Feb 26, 2 pm, 4 pm, 6 pm:  Scandinavian Smorgasbord @ Lord of Life Lutheran, Tickets are $10 
adult. (the BEST meal you’ll have all year!) .  
 
• February 28, 5:45 p.m.: Itadori Sister City Meeting @ City Hall, Call Karen Lane for info: 
456-2014 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 
None 
  
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 
REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 
 
Fire Dept 

 None 
 
 
Police Department 

 None 
 
Accountant, Lisa Vaughn 

 Council received January 2012 financial and an explanation of the revenues for that 
month. 

 Ms Vaughn explained revenues for the month of January. 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

7 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

 8% of fiscal year has elapsed. 
 Auditors will be here in March and council members are encouraged to ask questions of 

them and their presence may be requested. 
 
FNSB Representative 
The FNSB Assembly met on Thursday, Feb 9. As I was in Juneau, Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 
Bryce Ward represented the City and read City of North Pole Resolution 12-02 Opposing the 
proposed FNSB vehicle registration fees. The Assembly voted the action down.  
 
I attended the Committee of the Whole meeting of the FNSB Assembly on Feb 16 that gave the 
public and the Assembly the first read on the Gas Distribution Study that was emailed to Council 
today and that I discuss in my comments above. Also examined was Ordinance 2012-09, which 
addresses emission standards for space heating appliances. I anticipate much public comment on 
this item on Feb 23. There was also a discussion of: RESOLUTION NO. 2012-07. A Resolution 
Requesting The Alaska State Legislature And Governor Of Alaska To Make Expressly Legal 
The Cultivation Of Industrial Hemp In The State Of Alaska. If you want the handouts, I can copy 
them for you. 
 
The next regular FNSB Assembly meeting is scheduled for Feb 23 at 6 pm. The following 
Agenda items will be of interest to North Pole: 

 ORDINANCE NO. 2012-09. An Ordinance Amending FNSB 8.21.020 To Provide For 
The Addition Of Appliances To The Qualifying List If The Appliance Meets The 
Emissions Standard Of A Listed Appliance And Adding A Visible Emissions Standard 
To The Prohibited Acts Including Violation Of The Standard To The Fine Schedule. 

 RESOLUTION NO. 2012-11. A Resolution Urging The Alaska Delegation To The 112th 
Congress In Washington D.C. To Use Their Power And Influence To Convince The 
United States Department Of Defense To Preserve Eielson Air Force Base And Military 
Personnel Stationed There For The Defense And Protection Of The State And The 
Nation. 
For a list of meeting times and agendas, go to 
http://co.fairbanks.ak.us/meetings/Assembly 

 
Director of City Services, Bill Butler 
Building Department 

 Building Department code changes complete and ready for submission to Council.  
 Will submit at March 5 meeting 

 
Public Works 

 Police Department roof is aging and experiences minor failures annually 
 When snow cover melts will get a quote for a ―short-term‖ fix that can hopefully protect 

roof while budget funds for roof replacement. 
 Based upon Water Treatment Plant roof replacement, cost estimate is $120,000 to 

$150,000. 
 

http://co.fairbanks.ak.us/meetings/Assembly


Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

8 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

 
 
Utility Department 

 Utility Garage Project is before Council this evening 
 Recommended revisions in Title 13, Utility Department is before the Council this evening. 
 In March, will release an annual report for the utility  
 This will be the second year issuing an annual report 

 Purpose is to help utility customers better understand the utility 
 
City Clerk 
February 21, 2012 
 

 Ms. Weber attended the monthly luncheon at Santa’s Senior Center on Wednesday, 
January 18, 2012 and gave the Oath of Office to their new board members. 

 Senior Appreciation Luncheon is scheduled for Friday, March 30, 2012 at the Hotel 
North Pole. 

 Mayor’s Art Show is scheduled for Tuesday, April 10, 2012 at 6:00 p.m. at North Pole 
City Hall. 

 A special goodbye to Eleanor Barrett, resident at Holiday Heights who passed away on 
Saturday.   

 
 
ONGOING PROJECTS 
North Pole Economic Development Corp – Buzz Otis 

 Mr. Otis invited the council to the Mt. McKinley Bank North Pole Sled Dog 
Championships on February 25 & 26 which has a purse for this event of $15,000.  This 
has been named as one of the top 10 dog races in North America.  There will be free dog 
sled rides and a 3 person relay team for the Slippery Salmon Slalom which is a fundraiser 
for Itadori Sister City.    

 
 Award ceremony will take place at 4:30 p.m. on Sunday at Hotel North Pole. 

 
 Anchorage Economic Development met last week.  Mr. Otis attended their meeting and 

was able to come away with some good ideas for our area. 
 

 Mr. Otis attended the briefing with Col. Swartz and Congressman Young this past 
weekend. 

 
 
CITIZENS COMMENTS – 5 Minutes 
Traigh Priest - 3420 Hurst Rd, North Pole, AK 
Mr. Priest spoke on behalf of the NPHS  ―We the People‖, who are working with West Valley 
High School and are going to Washington, D.C.  Each student must raise $2,100 and they will be 
traveling to Washington, D.C. April 27th – May 1st. 
Contact – Patricia Behner at NPHS for more information. 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

9 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
REQUEST FOR 2011, 4TH QUARTER BED TAX FROM NORTH POLE COMMUNITY 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE. 
Heather Heineken – President 
Thanked council for their continued support.  NPCCC just finished Winterfest which goes along 
with Christmas in Ice.  They are in process of putting together Taste of North Pole on April 21st 
which showcases our area restaurants in conjunction with UAF Days.  Funds raised this year will 
go to We the People and Itadori Sister City. 
The NPCCC are always looking for people to become involved.  She is working with Fairbanks 
and State Chambers to help be advocates for our businesses. 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Mr. Jones move to Approve Request For 2011, 4th Quarter Bed Tax From North Pole 
Community Chamber Of Commerce In The Amount of $4009.29 
 
Seconded by Mr. Hunter 
 
Discussion 
None 
 
PASSED 
YES –5– McGhee, Jones, Hunter, Ward, Isaacson  
NO – 0  
Abstained- 0 
 
 
APPROVAL OF ENGAGEMENT LETTER BETWEEN CITY OF NORTH POLE AND 
MIKUNDA, COTTRELL & CO., FOR 2011 ANNUAL AUDIT 
Ms. Vaughn stated that this was the standard engagement letter which includes what the auditor 
is responsible for and what the city is responsible for.  All activities are outlined in the 
Engagement Letter. 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Mr. McGhee move to Approve Engagement Letter Between City Of North Pole And 
Mikunda, Cottrell & Co., For 2011 Annual Audit 
 
Seconded by Mr. Ward 
 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

10 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

Discussion 
None 
 
PASSED 
YES –5– McGhee, Jones, Hunter, Ward, Isaacson  
NO – 0  
Abstained- 0 
 
 
APPROVAL OF AWARD RECOMMENDATION FOR CITY OF NORTH POLE 
UTILITY GARAGE 
Mr. Butler informed council on the bids received for the project and on the re-appropriation of 
the Sludge Removal monies and utility revenues to cover this project. He stated that there is also 
a 10% contingency in the bid for items that may arise while building.  He encouraged the council 
to approve the bid and that the City was very fortunate to receive grant money from DEC. 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Mr. McGhee move to Approval Of Award Recommendation For City Of North Pole Utility 
Garage in the amount of $1,148,444 and Alternate #1 in the amount of $55,000 
 
Seconded by Mr. Jones 
 
Discussion 
Mr. Jones wanted to clarify that Mr. Butler had budgeted for this project. 
 
PASSED 
YES –5– McGhee, Jones, Hunter, Ward, Isaacson  
NO – 0  
Abstained- 0 
 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to suspend the rules to approve Ordinances 12-01 through 12-05 in one 
motion.  Ordinances are as follows: 
 
ORDINANCE 12-01, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES, SECTION 13.08, ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 
 
ORDINANCE 12-02, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES, SECTION 13.12, CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
ORDINANCE 12-03, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES, SECTION 13.16, WATER SERVICES 
 
ORDINANCE 12-04, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES, SECTION 13.24, UTILITY RATES 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

11 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

 
ORDINANCE 12-05, AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES, SECTION 13.28, LIEN ON REAL ESTATE FOR 
DELINQUENT UTILITY PAYMENTS AND ACCOUNT RESOLUTION PROCEDURES 
 
Seconded by Mr. Jones 
 
Mr. Butler went through each of the ordinances and explained the amendments that have been 
made.  Council had the opportunity to ask for clarification on them. 
 
Public Comment 
None 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to Introduce and Advance Ordinance 12-01, An Ordinance Of The 
City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public Services, Section 13.08, Administrative 
Provisions, Ordinance 12-02, An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, 
Public Services, Section 13.12, Customer Service, Ordinance 12-03, An Ordinance Of The 
City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public Services, Section 13.16, Water Services, 
Ordinance 12-04, An Ordinance Of The City Of North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public 
Services, Section 13.24, Utility Rates, Ordinance 12-05, An Ordinance Of The City Of 
North Pole To Amend Title 13, Public Services, Section 13.28, Lien On Real Estate For 
Delinquent Utility Payments And Account Resolution Procedures 
 
Seconded by Mr. Jones 
 
Discussion 
Mr. McGhee said Mr. Butler is an exemplary employee and would like to see the Mayor and 
Council come up with a Program and reward system.   
 
PASSED 
YES –5– McGhee, Jones, Hunter, Ward, Isaacson  
NO – 0  
Abstained- 0 
 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Ward – reminded everyone that there is a Finance Cmte meeting on March 5th at 5:30 p.m. 
He encouraged the council to talk with constituents and report back to the committee so they can 
move ahead in a well thought out manner.  They need to look to the future. 
 
Mr. Jones – the Finance Committee will try and meet prior to the Committee of the Whole.  
They are wanting to find better ways to help the city and the budget.  He encouraged the council 
to attend the meeting and the public.  He will bring in a report next meeting in regards to his trip 
to Juneau.  Mr. Jones stated that he is working hard with Mr. Ward and the Mayor to keep the 
City work well and not become another entity in the FNSB.  He commented on Eielson Air 
Force Base and moving the F-16’s to Anchorage. He is also working on getting power from 



Regular City Council Meeting 
February 21, 2012 

7:00 p.m. 

12 
City of North Pole 
Minutes of February 21, 2012 

Eielson to help with energy relief for area residents.  He was was sorry to hear that Eleanor 
Barrett had passed but is now with her husband Fred who passed 6 years ago. 
 
Ms. Hunter – expressed her sorrow for the passing of Eleanor Barrett.  She commented that a 
young man in his 20’s, Patrick Trometter, passed away of brain cancer on Saturday.  She agreed 
with Mr. McGhee’s comments on Bill Butler and that he goes the extra mile. 
 
Mr. McGhee – stated that is was a good council meeting and was happy to see the students who 
were recognized tonight.  He would like to see the council instruct the Police to do something 
with the snowmachiners.  He doesn’t want to see something bad happen to the children that are 
out riding but they are abusing the sidewalks in the city limits and are doing dangerous crossings 
in the City.  He would like to address the issue of postponing the council meetings on city 
holidays and asked the Mayor to consider having council meetings during the holidays of Martin 
Luther King Day when nothing else is going on.  He was impressed with the meeting tonight and 
highly recommended that Tammy Randolph be a member of the Finance Committee.  
 
Mayor Isaacson – will take under consideration the Tammy Randolph appointment.  He said the 
City has no authority to regulate snowmachiners on private property.  He is happy to see the 
Finance Committee meeting to make changes.  He said that we may need to create sub-
committees where we can expand and get people to help research issues and help navigate 
solutions.  He encourage all council members that they are adhoc of all committees.  The Mayor 
was thankful to Ms. Hunter letter us know about the passing of Patrick Trometter’s, as he has 
been a close friend of the family for years. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Mr. McGhee moved to adjourn the meeting of February 21, 2012 
 
Seconded by Mr. Jones 
 
No Objection 
 
The regular meeting of February 21, 2012 adjourned at 8:50 p.m. 
 
These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 
Council on Monday, March 5, 2012. 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      DOUGLAS W. ISAACSON, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:  
             
                         _____________________________________ 
              KATHRYN M. WEBER, MMC, City Clerk 







Sponsored by: Mayor Douglas Isaacson 
Introduced and Advanced:  February 21, 2012 

Passed:  March 5, 2012 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-01 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, CHAPTER 13.8, ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 

 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 
requirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 
requirements of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 
 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 
 
Section 2. Title 13, Chapter 13-8 Administrative Provisions is amended in the North Pole Code 
of Ordinances as follows in the attached revised chapter. 
 
Section 3. Effective date. 
This ordinance shall become effective upon passage and publication. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 
5th of March 2012. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk 
 



 
 

Chapter 13.08 
ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 
 
Sections: 
13.08.010 Utility services. 
13.08.020 Management of the water and sewer utilities. 
13.08.030 Basis of the city utility rate structure. 
13.08.040 Property of the city water and sewer utilities. 
13.08.050 Disposal of utilities, utility owned material or equipment. 
13.08.060 Authorized operations and maintenance personnel. 
13.08.070 Right of inspection. 
13.08.080 Service to areas outside city limits. 
13.08.090 Service to areas outside existing assessment districts. 
 
13.08.010 Utility services. 
 

A. The city water utility service provides a pressurized, piped water supply used by the 
citizens as a potable water supply and firefighting source of water. The city sewer utility 
provides a piped wastewater collection, treatment and disposal service in a manner which 
safeguards the health of the citizens of the city and protects the area’s environment.(Ord. 
00-16 §2, 2000); (Ord. 82-8 §1.B, 1982) 

 
B. All utility improvements shall be in accordance with the Uniform Plumbing Code, City of 

North Pole Construction Standards and approved plans by a registered professional 
engineer. (Ord. 00-16 §2, 2000) 

 
13.08.020 Management of the water and sewer utilities. 
 

A. The management of the North Pole Utility including billings, accounting and collections, 
review of applications for utility services, preparation of contracts for utility service, and 
enforcement of the rules and regulations of the utilities as established in the ordinance 
codified in this title shall be the responsibility of the mayor. 

 
B. The operation and maintenance of the utility system including the maintenance and repair 

of equipment, supervision of improvements to the systems, maintenance of records of 
operations and development of an annual operating budget shall be the responsibility of 
the city utility superintendent. 

 
C. Copies of all rates, rules and regulations which have been approved by the council shall 

be filed and maintained by the city clerk and shall be open for inspection by the public at 
the office of the clerk. (Ord. 82 8 §1.C, 1982) 

 
13.08.030 Basis of the City utility rate structure. 
 
The rate structure for the City utility services is set so as to make the utility self perpetuating 
without profit accumulation. (Ord. 82-8 §1.D, 1982) 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08.090


 
 

 
13.08.040 Property of the City water and sewer utilities. 
 
All equipment, meters, pipes, regulators, pumps, structures and other contrivances supplied by 
the City for the North Pole Utility shall remain the property of the North Pole Utility and may be 
removed whenever the City Council elects. (Ord. 82-8 §1.E, 1982) 
 
13.08.050 Disposal of utilities, utility owned material or equipment. 
 
The City may sell, lease or otherwise dispose of a municipal utility, utility owned material or 
equipment as per Section 13.4 of the City Charter. (Ord. 82-8 §1.F, 1982) 
 
13.08.060 Authorized operations and maintenance personnel. 
 
Only City employees and contractors approved by the utilities supervisor are authorized to 
install, repair, remove, inspect or exchange any portion of the City utility system. (Ord. 82-8 
§1.G, 1982) 
 
13.08.070 Right of inspection and access. 
 

A. Right of Inspection. The North Pole Utility reserves the right to perform an inspection of 
the customer’s premises at any time it deems necessary to determine that all piping, 
fixtures and related utility structures are in proper operating condition. Such inspection 
shall be performed in normal business hours unless an emergency exists which may 
jeopardize the utility system or the health and welfare of the citizens of the City. 

 
B. Right of Access. 

1. The North Pole Utility reserves the right to access a customer’s premises to 
disconnect the customer’s water service in the event the account has become 
delinquent. 

2. Tampering with the North Pole Utility disconnection devices shall result in a fine of 
$500 (five hundred dollars) and/or termination of water utility service. (Ord. 08-25 §2 
(part), 2008; Ord. 82-8 §1.H, 1982) 

 
13.08.080 Service to areas outside City limits. 
 
If not within the corporate limits of the City, a property owner can make application to the City 
for City utility service. As a condition of service, the property owner must agree to annexation of 
his property into the corporate limits of the City and abide by the rules and regulations of the 
utility. The Council will review all applications for utility service from property owners not 
within the corporate limits and reserves the right to refuse service to such applicants. (Ord. 82-8 
§1.I, 1982) 
 



 
 

13.08.090 Service to areas outside existing assessment districts. 
 

A. To the extent that a property or portion thereof is not levied an assessment from an 
existing assessment district, a tie-in fee shall be charged upon application to the City for 
connection to a municipally approved or constructed water or sewer main. 

 
B. Tie-In Charge Rates. 
 

1. For those residential properties or portions thereof connecting to a municipally 
approved or constructed water or sewer main the tie in charge shall be $750 (seven 
hundred fifty dollars) for water and $750 (seven hundred fifty dollars) for sewer. 

2. For those residential properties or portions thereof being served by a developer 
financed water or sewer facility the tie-in charge shall be $500 (five hundred dollars) 
for water and $500 (five hundred dollars) for sewer. 

3. For those commercial properties or portions thereof connecting to a municipally 
approved or constructed water or sewer main the tie-in charge shall be $1,500 (one 
thousand five hundred dollars) for water and $1,500 (one thousand five hundred 
dollars) for sewer. 

4. For those commercial properties or portions thereof being served by a developer-
financed water or sewer facility the tie-in charge shall be $1,000 (one thousand 
dollars) for water and $1,000 (one thousand dollars) for sewer. 

 
Residential and commercial properties water and sewer tie-in fees shall be the following: 
Water service line size Water tie-in fee Sewer tie-in fee 
¾ inches to 2 inches $200 $200 
Greater than 2 inches up to 4 
inches 

$250 $250 

Greater than 4 inches $300 $300 
 

C. Water service will be provided contingent upon connection to the City sewer facilities 
when sewer service is available (13.12.090). Sewer service may be provided independent 
of City water connection when City sewer service is not available. 

 
D. Application and payment in full of the tie-in charge shall be made before any 

construction commences. All construction shall be in accordance with Chapter 13.12. The 
tie-in charge includes the inspection fee. shall be in addition to the inspection fees 
charged in Section 13.24.090.  

 
E. Private Wastewater Disposal. 

 
1. Where a public sewer is not available under the provisions of the Uniform Plumbing 

Code (UPC), the building sewer shall be connected to a private wastewater disposal 
system complying with the same provisions and applicable City, State and Federal 
requirements. 
 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24.090


 
 

2. Upon completion of construction of a sewer system extension in an area, the City 
shall publish a notice that sewer service is available to serve the property owners of 
that area. The owner of a property as defined in Section 13.20.020(A)(4), and served 
by a private wastewater disposal system shall have installed or cause to be installed, 
at his expense, a connection to the public sewer within no less than two years from 
the date such sewer service is declared to be available, or any other timetable as 
prescribed by City Council or City code. Prior to the sale of a property served by a 
wastewater service system, hook up to the wastewater service is required. The 
connection shall be of a type and installed in a manner consistent with this chapter. 
Monthly wastewater fees as established by City code shall begin at time of such 
connection. (Ord. 11-05 §2, 2011; Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 2008; Ord. 01-03 §2 (part), 
2003; Ord. 00-16 §2 (part) 2000; Ord. 00-8 §2 (part), 2000; Ord. 99-18 §2, 1999; 
Ord. 83-5, 1983; Ord. 82-8 §1.J, 1982) 

 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1320.html#13.20.020


Sponsored by: Mayor Douglas Isaacson 
Introduced and Advanced:  February 21, 2012 

Passed:  March 5, 2012 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES, CHAPTER 13.12, CUSTOMER SERVICE 

 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 
requirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 
requirements of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 
 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 
 
Section 2. Title 13, Chapter 13-12 Customer Service is amended in the North Pole Code of 
Ordinances as follows in the attached revised section. 
 
Section 3. Effective date. 
This ordinance shall become effective upon passage and publication. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 
5th of March 2012. 
 
 

 
_________________________________________ 

Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor  
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

_________________________________________ 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk 



2 
 

Chapter 13.12 
CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
Sections: 
13.12.010 Application for service. 
13.12.020 Contract for utility service. 
13.12.030 Construction of extensions to city utility system. 
13.12.040 Standards of construction. 
13.12.050 Access to property. 
13.12.060 Refusal of service. 
13.12.070 Resale of service. 
13.12.080 Designation of point of connection. 
13.12.090 Compulsory connection to city water and sewer utility. 
13.12.100 Customer accounting and payments. 
13.12.110 Appeal of utility billings. 
13.12.120 Vacation of property. 
13.12.130 Disconnection of utility service. 
13.12.140 Service interruptions. 
13.12.150 Prohibited acts. 
 
13.12.010 Application for service. 
 

A.  To receive utility service from the city, property owners must file a completed 
application form for utility service with the city clerk’s office utility department. The 
application must be signed by the property owner whose property is to receive the utility 
service. 

 
B. Applicants or utility service shall be required to pay any previous indebtedness to the 

city, if any exists, including penalties, and the property to be served by the city’s utilities 
must be free of all utility liens prior to being eligible for service. All special assessment 
payments or payments in lieu of assessment due or delinquent against the property to 
which the improvement is to be connected must be paid to the city prior to the connection 
of utility service. 

 
C. Connection fees and established rates for utility service are as outlined in Chapter 13.24. 

 
D. The completed application will be reviewed by the mayor’s designee and utility 

superintendent. The utility may require the applicant’s property to be inspected by a 
representative of utility to ensure that the fixtures or equipment to be provided utility 
service are in good repair and in proper service and will not jeopardize the operation of 
utility. 

 
E. In the case where an applicant is requesting service for commercial, industrial, 

governmental, institutional or residential property which is to be subdivided, the review 
may require submission of further information which will be requested in writing from 
the mayor’s office. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.060
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.070
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.100
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.110
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.120
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.130
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.140
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.150
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24


3 
 

 
F. A new application must be made should a parcel of property for which utility service is 

requested changes ownership. (Ord. 82-8 §2.A, 1982) 
 
13.12.020 Contract for utility service. 
 

A. An approved application for utility service will constitute a contract between the property 
owner and renter and the city whereby the city agrees to provide water and sewer utility 
service to the property under the rules, regulations and methods established for the 
operation of the water and sewer utilities. Also see Section 13.12.100, D.4. 

 
1. New property owner. An individual, commercial enterprise or institution becomes a 

utility customer from the date they take ownership of a property where the property 
has active utility service regardless of whether they have submitted a utility contract. 
The new property owner is responsible for all utility charges from the date they take 
ownership of the property and all charges documented in the liens against the 
property including liens for outstanding delinquent utility bills incurred by past and 
current renters of the property. 

 
2. New renter. An individual, commercial enterprise or institution becomes a utility 

customer from the date they become a renter of a property where the property has 
active utility service regardless of whether they have submitted a utility contract. The 
new renter is responsible for all utility charges from the date they rent the property. 

 
3. Landlord responsibility for delinquent utility charges. When the applicant for utility 

service is a renter, the property owner is legally responsibility for the renter’s utility 
charges.  

 
4. Rental property with a history of delinquencies. When a rental property has a 

history of delinquent utility customers, the utility will only create a utility account in 
the name of the property owner. A history of delinquencies shall be defined as two or 
more separate renters who become delinquent on their utility accounts within a 12 
month period. 

 
B. All contracts shall take effect from the day they are signed, or as otherwise deemed effective 

under the utility ordinance, whichever is earlier and rates will be charged and bills rendered for 
water service from the date or dates the premises are connected with the North Pole Utility. 

 
C. All contracts shall continue in effect thirty days after written notice of discontinuance is 

filed in the office of the city clerk utility and until all charges and penalties imposed have 
been paid in full. (Ord. 82 8 §2.B, 1982) 

 
D. For utility accounts in owner-renter relationships, failure to submit a utility contract 

signed by the property owner and renter within 30 days of the renter beginning tenancy of 
a property and failure to pay in full the required utility deposit(s) is grounds for the North 



4 
 

Pole Utility to terminate utility service to the property. A legally authorized agent of a 
property owner may sign in lieu of the property owner provided the agent provides proof 
of authority to enter in to a legally binding contract on behalf of the property owner. 

 
1. Verbal notice. Upon learning of a renter without a signed utility contract, the Utility 

shall attempt to contact the renter and property owner by telephone if the Utility has 
viable telephone numbers to notifying them of the requirement to submit a signed 
contract and to pay the required deposits. The parties shall have five (5) business days 
from receipt of a verbal notice to submit the signed contract and to pay the required 
deposits. A voice mail or other electronic verbal message is equivalent to a telephone 
contact for the purposes of this section. If the utility does not have telephone contact 
information for the renter or property owner, the utility shall proceed immediately to 
sending written notices as described in 2, below. 
 

2. Written notice. If the renter and property owner do not submit a utility contract signed 
by the renter and property owner and pay the required deposits within five (5) 
business days of the telephone contact, the utility shall send notices by certified mail 
to the renter and property owner if the utility has mailing addresses and a door hanger 
shall be placed at the residence of the renter. The written notice shall notify the renter 
and property owner that they must submit a utility contract signed by the renter and 
property owner and pay the required deposits within ten (10) business days; otherwise 
the Utility will initiate legal action to shutoff off water service.  
 

3. Termination of water service. If the renter and property owner do not submit a utility 
contract signed by the renter and property owner and pay the required deposits within 
ten (10) business days after the written notices have been sent nor consent to the City 
entering the premises to shut off the water service, the City shall initiate legal action 
to shut off water service at the property. Upon proof of compliance with this chapter, 
the City shall be entitled to a writ of assistance and an order allowing it to enter the 
premises served by the utility for the purpose of shutting off the water service and to 
verify, at reasonable intervals based upon the circumstances, that the water shutoff 
device has not been bypassed or tampered with. If the utility initiates legal action to 
terminate water service, a liquidated damages fee of $50.00 shall also be assessed to 
the utility account. 
 

4. Responsibility for costs and liquidated damages: The property owner and renter shall 
be jointly responsible for the failure to submit a signed utility contract and any 
associated charges, costs or attorney fees.  

 
E. For utility accounts where the property owner is the utility customer, failure to submit a 

utility contract signed by the property owner within 30 days after taking ownership of the 
property and failure to pay in full the required utility deposit(s) is grounds for the North 
Pole Utility to terminate utility service to the property. Resolution of a property owner 
without a signed utility contract shall follow the steps listed in D, 1-4, above. 

 



5 
 

13.12.030 Construction of extensions to city utility system. 
 

A. Any water distribution or sewage collection systems which are to become part of the 
city’s utility system will be installed, financed and connected by the creation of special 
assessment districts or by contract between the city and the property owner whose 
property is to be served by the utility. All proposed additions to either the city water 
distribution system or sewage collection system shall be constructed in accordance with 
the design and construction standards for the city water and sewer utility system and shall 
be inspected and approved by the city before operation.  

 
B. No property owner or his agent shall commence construction of an extension of the city 

water or sewer system other than individual service laterals without first obtaining a 
permit issued by the city council and from the state Department of Environmental 
Conservation. After such plans and specifications have been approved, no substantial 
changes therein shall be made without first submitting a detailed statement of such 
proposed changes to the city council for review and approval. (Ord. 00-16 §2(part), 
2000); (Ord. 08-25 §2(part), 2008) 

 
C. The property owner whose property is to be served by proposed utility extensions other 

than individual service laterals shall provide the mayor’s designee with construction 
plans and specifications for the installation of the utility extension. These plans and 
specifications shall be certified by a registered engineer in the State of Alaska and 
accompanied by an engineering report summarizing assumptions and design criteria. 
Property owners requesting individual service laterals shall submit a site plan showing 
location and proposed materials for approval by the utility supervisor. (Ord. 00-16 
§2(part), 2000) 

 
D. The mayor’s designee, in reviewing applications, plans and specifications, or engineering 

reports, shall consider the adequacy of the project to meet present and future needs of the 
area served. The functional and sanitary features of the design of the project, the 
economics of the project as compared to possible alternatives, the availability of existing 
sewer facilities, and the suitability of the project with respect to present or future uses of 
the affected area. 

 
E. The property owner shall provide the mayor’s designee with a construction schedule so 

that the work may be inspected by the city. The city reserves the right to refuse utility 
service to the property owner if the proposed extensions are not constructed according to 
the city’s utility construction standards. As built drawings of the utilities shall be 
submitted to the city as a condition of service. 

 
F. Prior to acceptance of the utility system extension by the city, the property owner shall 

grant and record utility easements as required by the city for access to and maintenance 
of the utility system. 

 
G. Construction of a project for which plans and specifications have been approved must be 

completed and accepted within two years following approval or such approval will be 



6 
 

void. Extensions will be granted when delays in construction are beyond the control of 
the property owner. A bond may be required for the uncompleted portion of the work. 
(Ord. 82 8 §2.C, 1982) 

 
13.12.040 Permitting utility system construction and standards of construction. 
 

A. Permitting utility system construction. The Utility Administrative Code details the 
processes and requirements that shall be followed by a developer to obtain the permits 
required prior to constructing a utility system extension. 

 
B. Standards of construction. The methods and materials used to construct utility service 

facilities connected to the city’s water and sewer utility systems shall conform to the 
adopted utility construction standards of the city, the standards established by the state 
Department of Environmental Conservation, and the Uniform Plumbing Code as 
modified by the city’s utility construction standards. (Ord. 82 8 §2.D, 1982); (Ord. 08-25 
§2 (part), 2008) 

 
13.12.050 Access to property. 
 
Owners of property served by the city water and sewer utilities must maintain and allow year 
round access to the service connection for inspection, maintenance and repair. (Ord. 82 8 §2.E, 
1982) 
 
13.12.060 Refusal of service. 
 
The city reserves the right to refuse to render service to any customer when such service will 
interfere with the city’s service to its other customers, or which will cause abnormal demands 
upon the city’s facilities, or which if served will result in financial loss to the city, or which 
would be discriminatory as to one class of customer, or where the applicant has not complied 
with the regulations of the city concerning the rendering of utility service. Suitable protective 
devices may be required whenever or wherever the system finds such devices necessary to 
protect the customer’s property, the property of other customers or the property of the system. 
(Ord. 82 8 §2.G, 1982) 
 
13.12.070 Resale of service. 
 
No purchaser of city water or sewer utility service shall connect the utility service with the 
corresponding service of any other person or in any way resell or supply, rebill or supply any 
other person or premises with water or sewer service through his services unless covered by the 
terms of a written contract with the city. (Ord. 82 8 §2.H, 1982) 
 
13.12.080 Designation of point of connection. 
 
The city utility supervisor, or his designated representative, shall determine the point at which 
new utility services are to be connected to the city’s existing utility system. (Ord. 82 8 §2.I, 
1982) 



7 
 

 
13.12.090 Compulsory connection to city water and sewer utility. 
 
Connection to the city water and sewer utility system shall be mandatory within a voter approved 
special assessment district or whenever the property has direct access to the municipal water 
and/or sewer facilities and the structure on the property is within two hundred (200) feet of the 
municipal water and/or sewer facility. The owner of a property shall have installed or cause to be 
installed, at his expense, a connection to the public water or sewer within no less than two years 
from the date such service is declared to be available, or any other timetable as prescribed by city 
council or city code. Prior to the sale of a property served by the city water or sewer service 
system, hook up to the service is required. The connection shall be of a type and installed in a 
manner consistent with the North Pole municipal code and standards of construction. Monthly 
utility fees as established by city code shall begin at time of such connection. Failure to connect 
to available water and/or sewer service within the two-year time period, shall be cause for the 
property owner to be billed and required to pay the applicable monthly water and/or sewer flat 
rate fee on an ongoing month by month basis. (Ord. 04-08 §2 (part), 2004), (Ord. 01-03 §2(part), 
2003), (Ord. 82 8 §2.J, 1982) 
 
13.12.100 Customer accounting and payments. 
 

A. It is the duty of the city clerk or his designated representative utility to keep accounts of 
all property owners whose property is served by the city water and sewer utility, and to 
enter on such accounts all charges and penalties, and to fix meter reading dates and 
billing dates as necessary to efficiently execute the accounting requirements of the utility. 

 
B. Meters will be read on the same date each month whenever practical. The utility reserves 

the right to read meters every other month and to bill the customer for consumption on an 
estimated basis for the intervening month. Where the meter readers are unable to gain 
access to the customer’s premises to read the meters, the utility may estimate the 
consumption until the meter readers are able to gain access. 

 
C. Any discrepancies in utility bills must be reported in writing within thirty (30) days after 

the billing date, otherwise the account will be considered correct. 
 

D. Deposits 
 

1. New account deposits: All property owners receiving service from the utility or 
having the service available shall be obligated to pay for such service in accordance 
with the appropriate rate schedule as outlined in Section 13.24.010, and shall pay a 
deposit as outlined below. 

 
New account deposit 

Meter size Water deposit Sewer deposit 
3/4 inch $75 $75 
1 inches $100 $100 



8 
 

1 1/2 inches $150 $150 
2 inches $200 $200 
3 inches $225 $225 
4 inches $250 $250 
5 inches  $275 $275 
6 inches or 
larger 

$300 $300 

 
2. Return of deposit. When the customer terminates their account, they may request that 

the account balance at the time of account termination be charged to the deposit and 
any balance due the customer will be refunded from the liability account, and 
processed as such. Where an owner/occupant vacates the property without clearing 
their account of debt within 30 days from the termination of the account, the City of 
North Pole Utilities shall deduct the balance owed to the City from the deposit plus a 
$10 (ten dollar) processing fee and return the balance to the former account holder. 

 
3. Property owner-tenant responsibilities: In the case of a property owner-tenant 

relationship, the property owner shall be held liable for all billings. Should ownership 
of the property change, the new owner shall assume all obligations of utility service 
including the liability for all billings. The property owner, upon request to the city, 
shall be provided a copy of the tenant’s billing history.  

 
4. Should legal ownership of the property serviced by the utility change, the new owner 

shall immediately contact the City to establish an account. and, Regardless of whether 
a new account is established, the owner shall be fully responsible for all obligations 
arising from utility service to the property, including the liability for all past unpaid or 
ongoing utility billings documented in liens against the property including liens for 
outstanding delinquent utility bills incurred by past and current renters of the 
property. Also see Section 13.12.020. 

 
E. All charges owed by any person for sewer or water service rendered by the utility may be 

billed as a unit. However, charges for water and sewer may be paid separately. For new 
connections, service shall be charged in proportion to the monthly charge from the date 
when the connection from the customer’s property is made to the lines of the utility. 

 
F. Repealed. 

 
G. Failure to make payment by the date specified on monthly statements will cause the 

account to become past due. A late charge of up to the maximum interest rate allowed by 
law will be added to the past due amount and will appear on the following bill. Failure to 
receive mail will not be recognized as a valid excuse for late payments. Accounts may be 
assigned to a collection agency. 

 
H.    Delinquent accounts. 



9 
 

1.    Notice of delinquent account. In addition to the current monthly utility statement, a reminder 
of account delinquency and penalty shall be sent to each past due customer. 
2.    Accounts sixty days past. When an account becomes sixty days past due the account holder 
shall be notified of the delinquency by certified mail. At sixty days past due, the delinquent 
account shall be assessed a liquidated damages fee calculated as equal to fifty percent of the 
deposit amount. The liquidated damages fee shall be due and payable in full by the date on the 
following statement. In the event the City is aware the utility service is an owner-tenant 
relationship, the City will make a good faith effort to send the owner a copy of the notice sent to 
the account holder. The City is under no obligation to notify the property owner of tenant 
delinquencies. 
3.    Accounts ninety days past due. When an account becomes ninety days past due, the City 
shall mail a notice of lien via certified mail to the property owner. If payments in full, including 
any interest and liquidated damages payments, or payment arrangements are not made within 
fifteen days of mailing of the notice, the City shall place a lien on the property served for all 
charges incurred. This lien shall be superior to any and all other liens to the maximum extent 
allowed under State law. 
4.    Service disconnection. As detailed in Section 13.12.130, Disconnection of utility service, the 
North Pole Utility may disconnect utility service on the date an account becomes delinquent. 
I.    The City Council shall receive a listing of all accounts that are sixty days or more delinquent 
at the second regularly scheduled Council meeting of each month. 
J.    Special payment agreements. 
1.    Negotiated payment for utility charges shall be called special payment agreements. All 
special payment agreements shall be in a form agreeable to the City Council and City Attorney 
and shall contain the terms substantially as follows: 
a.    Time period shall not exceed six months without City Council approval. 
b.    Bills issued during the term of the special payment agreement must be paid on a current 
basis or all utility service will be discontinued without further notice. 
2.    A listing of special payment contracts in effect and their payment status shall be furnished to 
the City Council once each calendar quarter. (Ord. 10-03 §2, 2010; Ord. 08-25 §2(part), 2008; 
Ord. 08-07 §2 (part),2008; Ord. 01-03 §2(part), 2003; Ord. 00-16 §2(part), 2000; Ord. 00-11 §2, 
2000; Ord. 99-24 §2, 1999; Ord. 82 8 §2.K, 1982) 
 
13.12.110 Appeal of utility billings. 
 

A. Any city utility customer who believes his utility billing is unjust and inequitable as 
applied to his property within the intent of the city utility rules and regulations may make 
written application to the city council requesting a review of his utility billing. The 
application shall include the facts and data upon which the appeal is based. 

 
B. While awaiting council review of his appeal, the customer shall pay the amount of the 

disputed bill to the city within thirty days from the mailing date to avoid becoming 
delinquent. Subsequent bills shall be paid in full within the prescribed time limit. 

 
C. Payment of disputed bills as required by this section shall not be deemed to prejudice an 

otherwise valid contest. 
 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1312.html#13.12.130


10 
 

D. Review of the request shall be made by the city council who shall determine if it is 
substantiated or not, including recommending further study of the matter by a designated 
representative. 

 
E. If the request is determined to be substantiated, the charges for the customer shall be 

recomputed based on the council approved terms, and the new charges thus recomputed 
shall be applicable retroactively up to one year. (Ord. 00-16 §2(part), 2000); (Ord. 82 8 
§2.L, 1982) 

 
F. In instances where a utility customer billing appeal relates to a situation limited to 

forgiveness of sewer service and associated charges where the customer can document 
the water upon which the charges are calculated was not discharged into the sewer 
system, the mayor or his designee may waive these charges without the appeal 
proceeding to the City Council for approval. Should such an appeal be granted by the 
mayor or his designee, he shall report the waiver of these charges to the City Council.  

 
13.12.120 Vacation of property. 
 
Each customer about to vacate any premises receiving water and/or sewer services from the 
utility shall give the utility written notice of his intentions at least ten days prior thereto, 
specifying the date service is to be discontinued; otherwise, he will be responsible for all utility 
water and/or sewer charges until the utility receives notice of such removal. At the time specified 
by the customer that he expects to vacate the premises where service is supplied, a closing bill 
will be rendered which is payable immediately. (Ord. 82 8 §2.N, 1982) 
 
13.12.130 Disconnection of utility service. 
 

A. Utility service may be disconnected if any charge has not been paid in full on the date it 
becomes delinquent or for any other reason established by City of North Pole Ordinances. 

B. . A notice of disconnect shall be served by an officer of the City of North Pole at a 
minimum of 72 hours in advance of the disconnection. To halt the disconnection the 
customer shall pay all outstanding utility charges, including all interest and liquidated 
damages payments, in advance of the action to disconnection. In situations involving 
disconnection, The City shall only accept payment in cash or certified check. If it is 
necessary to issue a disconnect order for nonpayment of any utility service a $100 (one 
hundred dollar) processing charge shall be added to the customer’s bill. In case service is 
disconnected for any violation of the provisions of this chapter, or under this section, 
such service shall not be furnished or resumed to the delinquent customer at the premises 
or any other premises where the delinquent customer applies for service until all arrears 
have been paid in full and a reconnect fee has been paid. (Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 2008) 

 
C. Whenever it is necessary for the utility to discontinue the utility service to enforce the 

collection of a delinquency, a $250 (two hundred fifty dollar) reconnect fee will be 
charged in addition to the delinquent amount and both amounts must be paid before the 
utility service will be restored. The utility will not be responsible for any damages or 
freezing occurring as a result of discontinuance of service for unpaid billings. In addition, 



11 
 

the customer shall pay all associated costs, including but not limited to excavation, 
repaving, compacting, etc. Monthly billings for water and sewer charges shall be 
continued on the delinquent account. The property owner shall be responsible for all 
charges and attorney’s fees thus incurred. (Ord. 82-8 §2.O, 1982; Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 
2008) 

 
13.12.140 Service interruptions. 
 
The utility reserves the right to temporarily suspend services when necessary for the purpose of 
new installations, repairs, testing, modification, expansion, correction or replacement of the 
system. The utility will attempt to notify affected utility users of impending service interruptions 
where possible and where not precluded by emergency conditions. The utility will exercise 
reasonable diligence in avoiding inconvenience which may arise out of necessary service 
interruptions. Utility shall not be liable to the customer for breach of contract or any loss or 
damage which may be caused by failure of the utility to deliver service. (Ord. 82-8 §2.P, 1982) 
 
13.12.150 Prohibited acts. 
 

A. No person without first obtaining a permit from the City of North Pole shall be allowed to 
make a connection to any facility of the utility or to make alterations in any conduit, pipe 
or other fitting connecting directly therewith, or to connect pipes where they have been 
disconnected, or to turn water service on or off to any premises. No person other than an 
authorized employee of the utility may turn on or turn off any water main of the utility 
system. 

 
B. A violation for the purposes of this section shall be any individual unpermitted act listed 

below: 
1. Connecting to a water main; 
2. Connecting to a sewer main; 
3. Making alterations in any conduit, pipe or other fitting connecting directly to a water 

main, sewer main, service connection or other utility facility; 
4. Connecting pipes where they have been disconnected; 
5. Turning water service on to a premises; 
6. Turning water service off to a premises; 
7. Turning on a water main; 
8. Turning off a water main. 
9. Turning on a fire hydrant without utility department authorization. 
10. Turning off a fire hydrant without utility department authorization. 

 
C. Violations of the provisions of this section shall constitute a misdemeanor. The person or 

entity responsible violating this section of the Municipal Code shall be subject to a fine of 
up to $1,500 (one thousand five hundred dollars) and ninety days in jail for each violation 
plus be liable for any damages to City and private property; any City related expenses to 
correct a violation; and for the estimated value of any discharged water or wastewater. 
(Ord. 09-06 § 2, 2009) 



Sponsored by: Mayor Douglas Isaacson 
Introduced and Advanced:  February 21, 2012 

Passed:  March 5, 2012 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, CHAPTER 13-16 WATER SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 
requirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 
requirements of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 
 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 
 
Section 2. Title 13, Chapter 13-16 Water Services is amended in the North Pole Code of 
Ordinances as follows in the attached revised chapter. 
 
Section 3. Effective date. 
This ordinance shall become effective upon passage and publication. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 
5th of March 2012. 
 
 

_________________________________ 
Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



2 
 

Chapter 13.16 
WATER SERVICES 
 
Sections: 
13.16.010 Utility rates, fees and charges. 
13.16.020 Additional conditions of service. 
13.16.030 Multiple water services. 
13.16.040 Bulk and temporary water sales. 
13.16.050 Liability. 
13.16.060 Prohibited acts. 
 
13.16.010 Utility rates, fees and charges. 
 

A. Rates for the installation of water meters, connection fees and monthly user charges are 
set forth in Chapter 13.24. 

 
B. The customer provides and pays for all expenses required to install the necessary water 

pipe, valves, fittings to connect his property to the North Pole Utility water distribution 
system at the point of connection designated by the utility supervisor or his designated 
representative. Water meters are installed by the city under the conditions outlined in 
Chapter 13.24. (Ord. 82 8 §3.A, 1982) 

 
13.16.020 Additional conditions of service. 
 

A. All residential, commercial, educational, industrial, institutional and governmental users 
shall be metered. Water meters may be installed at any time deemed necessary by North 
Pole Utility in accordance with the requirements of the utility. Installation must conform 
to the utility standards of construction. (Ord. 01-13, §2(part), 2001) 

 
B. The city may refuse to permit any person to connect to a water main or to be served 

directly or indirectly by water from North Pole Utility, and may refuse to accept a water 
main for operation and maintenance purposes unless the main was constructed and 
installed pursuant to a written agreement with the city or the city can otherwise assure 
itself that the main was constructed and installed in compliance with the applicable 
requirements and specifications of the North Pole Utility. 

 
C. North Pole Utility will maintain and repair all mains that have been accepted for 

maintenance and operation by the utility but will not be responsible for maintaining the 
customer’s service connection or for damage to the service connection caused by freezing 
that results from negligence or a willful act on the part of the customer. (Ord. 08-25 §2 
(part), 2008) 

 
D. The customer’s service, from point of connection to the City main or the customer’s 

building plumbing shall be kept in repair by the owner or occupant of the premises, who 
shall be responsible for all breaks in the line and for any damages resulting incidentally 
therefrom, other than those caused by acts of the North Pole Utility. The City shall not be 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1316.html#13.16.010
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1316.html#13.16.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1316.html#13.16.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1316.html#13.16.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1316.html#13.16.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1316.html#13.16.060


3 
 

responsible for damages in service lines freezing resulting from the shut down of a 
customer’s service for a delinquent account. In the case of a frozen water service, the 
customer shall be responsible for thawing the service line from the main to the building 
unless the freezing condition can subsequently be demonstrated to have been the result of 
a malfunction of the city’s utility system beyond the control of the customer. (Ord. 00-16 
§2(part), 2000); (Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 2008) 

 
1. Exposing a customer service line break and/or disconnecting service in the event of a 

service line break. In the event of a customer service line break resulting from 
freezing or other causes, the North Pole utility shall disconnect as quickly as is 
feasible the service to the broken service line to protect public health and safety and 
to limit damage to public and private property. (Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 2008) 

 
2. Responsibility for expenses for exposing a customer service line break and/or 

disconnecting service and the repair of customer water service line breaks. In the 
event of a customer water service line break not resulting from negligence or a willful 
act on the part of the customer, as determined by the North pole utility in its sole 
discretion, the North pole utility may share up to fifty percent (50%) of the costs 
associated with repairing the break in the utility right-of-way and adjacent properties 
affected by the repair. The North pole utility shall not be responsible for any of the 
expenses associated with repairing a customer water service line on the customer’s 
property other than if the break is caused by a freezing condition and/or other causes 
that can by a preponderance of the evidence subsequently be demonstrated to have 
been the result of a malfunction of the North Pole Utility. (Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 2008) 

 
E. All persons, prior to receiving service from the North Pole Utility, shall provide a 

separate shutoff valve inside the building or structure for which service is being 
requested. The valve shall be located on the service line entering the building, ahead of 
any branch lines, where it is readily accessible in the event of emergency. 

 
F. The customer service line wherein the point of connection is in excess of fifty feet of the 

city main water line shall have installed an approved circulation pump system. A 
circulation pump may also be required in any event where freeze up has occurred, 
regardless of the distance of the main from the point of connection. (Ord. 85 4 §1, 1985; 
Ord. 82 8 §3.B, 1982) 

 
G. Installation of water connection and water supply line. 

 
1. All water connections shall be installed and mains tapped only by a contractor 

licensed by the State of Alaska. As a prerequisite to commencing any work on the 
utility, the contractor shall obtain a permit from the utility department where they 
must furnish: 

a. State of Alaska contractor’s license number 
b. Proof of Workman’s Compensation Insurance, if required by law; 
c. A bond in the amount of $5,000 (five thousand dollars) if the work is 

occurring or will affect a City of North Pole road right-of way. 



4 
 

d. Proof of payment of City of North Pole utility tie in fees (Section 13.08.090, 
B) 

e. Should the work be in or directly effect a State of Alaska road right of way, 
proof of authorization to work in this right of way. 

f. Should the work be in or directly affect private property other than the 
property owner for whom the utility connection is for, proof of authorization 
to work in this private property. 

g. Should the work or utility connection require an easement or vacation of an 
easement, proof that the easement or vacation has been obtained 

h. Other proof of capability to perform such work as required by the public 
works director utility department. 

i. Commencing work without a permit from the utility department shall be 
subject to fines as specified in Section 13.12.150 Prohibited acts.  

 
2. A minimum of 48 hours notification is required to schedule an inspection by the 

North Pole Utilities. 
 
3. All work must be inspected by the North Pole Utilities before water is returned to the 

main and the work is covered. Work not inspected by the North Pole Utilities before 
it is covered shall be re-excavated for inspection by the North Pole Utilities at the 
owner’s expense. 

 
4. The party or parties installing the water supply line outside the street right of way 

need not meet the requirements of a bonded contractor as outlined above, but they 
shall make the city aware of their capabilities to perform such work. Those installing 
this portion of the water service line will, however, be required to meet the same 
material and workmanship qualifications outlined in the The service line connection 
shall be installed according to the City of North Pole Utility Standard of Construction 
Specifications. (Ord. 04-08 §2(part), 2004) (Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 2008) 

 
13.16.030 Multiple water services. 
 
In buildings occupied by two or more water customers, the water service to each customer must 
be individually metered and adequately valved to permit disconnection of any customer without 
interrupting service to the other customers in the building. Existing services that do not meet 
these requirements will be disconnected, unless the owner of the building has: 
 

A. Secured a contract arrangement with an approved contractor to modify the water service 
to meet these requirements; or 

 
B. Has contracted to be the sole customer for the water service and has had a master water 

meter installed to meter all water used in the building; or 
 

C. Has entered into an agreement with the North Pole Utility to guarantee payment of all 
water service into the building. (Ord. 82 8 §3.C, 1982) 

 



5 
 

13.16.040 Bulk and temporary water sales. 
 

A. The sale of bulk potable water can be negotiated with the mayor or his designee. The 
water shall be available at the city water treatment plant or other designated point for 
loading into the customer’s container for either personal use or resale, and shall be based 
solely on the availability of water. (Ord. 00-16 §2(part), 2000) Bulk water sales shall be 
charged at the current per gallon water charge, including facilities repair and replacement 
charge, plus a service charge which shall be a minimum of $25 or 10 percent of the 
transaction, whichever is greater. Each discharge of water shall be considered an 
individual transaction and subject to a service charge. 

 
B. Temporary contracts for short term water use may be negotiated by the mayor with 

notification to the City Council. (Ord. 00-16 §2(part), 2000); (Ord. 82 8 §3.D, 1982) 
 
13.16.050 Liability. 
 

A. The North Pole Utility shall not be held liable for damage by fire, flooding, freezing, or 
other causes resulting from defective piping, fixtures or appliances on the customer’s 
premises supplied with water from the North Pole Utility. (Ord. 00-16 §2(part), 2000) 

 
B. Inspection of piping, fixtures and appliances shall not create any liability against the 

North Pole Utility or the employees thereof for damages to persons or property resulting 
from defective piping, fixtures or appliances on the premises. (Ord. 82 8 §3.E, 1982) 

 
13.16.060 Prohibited acts. 
 

A. No person without first obtaining a permit from the City of North Pole shall be allowed to 
make a connection to any facility of the North Pole Utility or to make alterations in any 
conduit, pipe or other fitting connecting directly therewith, or to connect pipes where 
they have been disconnected, or to turn water service on or off in any premises. No 
person other than an authorized employee of the North Pole Utility may turn on or turn 
off any water main of the North Pole Utility system. 

 
B. No person other than an authorized employee of the North Pole Utility or a member of 

the fire department in connection with official duties may connect to, turn on, or turn off 
any fire hydrant located on the North Pole Utility system without first obtaining a 
contract from the city. Illicit connection to or turn-ons or turn-offs of any fire hydrant 
shall result in a fine of $1,000 $1,500 (one thousand five hundred dollars) plus liability 
for the estimated value of any discharged water and liability for damage to all public or 
private property caused by the illicit connection to or turn-on or turn-off of a fire hydrant. 

 
C. No person may allow a premises or facility which is served by the North Pole Utility to 

be connected to another water system, including a private well or other on-property 
facility, or to have service from another system readily available to the premises or 
facility in such a manner that the integrity of the North Pole Utility water service may be 
jeopardized. Notwithstanding the prohibitions of this section, standby service may be 



6 
 

permitted by the North Pole Utility to customers, such as hospitals, clinics or government 
facilities, if it is determined that the failure of the water supply would be detrimental to 
the public health, welfare or security; provided, that such a customer must install at his 
own expense a backflow preventer of a type approved by the utility superintendent or his 
designated representative, prior to commencement of service. 

 
D. In accordance with the latest adopted edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code, the North 

Pole Utility will not permit any cross-connection and will discontinue service to any 
persons or premises where a cross-connection exists. The property owner will be 
responsible for any expenses associated with disconnection and reconnection of utility 
service. Service will not be restored until the cross-connection is eliminated. Customers 
using water from one or more sources in addition to receiving water from the North Pole 
Utility on the same premises shall maintain separate systems for each, and the North Pole 
Utility’s water supply facilities shall be separated from any and all other systems by an 
air gap of not less than one foot, or if in the ground, by not less than five feet.  

 
E. No person may sell water furnished by the North Pole Utility unless the person holds a 

valid certificate of public necessity and convenience issued by the state Public Utilities 
Commission for retail sale of water and has executed a contract with the North Pole 
Utility for bulk sale of potable water. REPEALED 

 
F. No person may furnish or provide water with or without charge to another premises 

located in an area where a service connection could supply water from the North Pole 
Utility. 

 
G. No person may waste water supplied by the North Pole Utility. In the event that water 

wasting is found to jeopardize the functioning of the North Pole Utility, the North Pole 
Utility may disconnect the service where water is being wasted. (Ord. 09-06 § 3, 2009; 
Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 2008; Ord. 00-16 §2(part), 2000; Ord. 82-8 §3.F, 1982) 

 
 



Sponsored by: Mayor Douglas Isaacson 
Introduced and Advanced:  February 21, 2012 

Passed:  March 5, 2012 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-4 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO AMEND 
TITLE 13, CHAPTER 13-24 UTILITY RATES 

 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 
requirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 
requirements of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 
 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 
 
Section 2. Title 13, Chapter 13-24 Utility Rates is amended in the North Pole Code of 
Ordinances as follows in the attached revised chapter. 
 
Section 3. Effective date. 
This ordinance shall become effective upon passage and publication. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 
5th of March 2012. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk 



2 
 

Chapter 13.24 
UTILITY RATES 
 
Sections: 
13.24.020 Metered water and sewer utility rates. 
13.24.030 Senior determination. 
13.24.040 Emergency utility customer payment fund. 
13.24.050 Meter installation. 
13.24.080 Significant industrial discharger charges. 
13.24.090 Fee for connection to city utility mains. 
13.24.100 Negotiated rates. 
13.24.110 Flat rates 
 
13.24.020 Metered water and sewer utility rates. 
Monthly water and sewer utility rates beginning January 1, 2011 2012 shall be the following: 

Customer class 

Per 
gallon 
water 

Monthly 
base 
water 
charge 

Per 
gallon 
sewer 
charge1 

Monthly 
base 
sewer 
charge 

FRR2-
Water 
per 
gallon 
charge 

FRR2-
Sewer 
per 
gallon 
charge 

FRR2 
Significant 
Industrial 
Discharger-
Sewer 

Single-family 
residential 

$0.01464 
$0.01550 

$5 $0.00882 
$0.01014 

$5 $0.0015 $0.0015 -- 

Senior single-family 
residential 

$0.00732 
$0.00775 

$5 $0.00441 
$0.00507 

$5 $0.0015 $0.0015 -- 

Multi-family residential $0.01464 
$0.01550 

$25 $0.00882 
$0.01014 

$25 $0.0015 $0.0015 -- 

Senior multi-family 
residential 

$0.00732 
$0.01550 

$25 $0.00441 
$0.01014 

$25 $0.0015 $0.0015 -- 

Commercial $0.01464 
$0.01550 

$25 $0.00882 
$0.01014 

$25 $0.0015 $0.0015 -- 

Commercial/Significant 
Industrial Discharger 

$0.01464 
$0.01550 

$25 $0.00882 
$0.01014 

$25 -- -- $0.00345 

1.    The monthly sewer charge for the months of May, June, July and August will be capped at an amount not to 
exceed the average of the water usage during the months of September through April for single-family and senior 
single-family residential customers only. 
2.    Facility Repair and Replacement: Funds generated to repair and replace utility capital infrastructure.  
(Ord. 11-01 (Substitute A) §2, 2011: Ord. 11-01 §2, 2011: Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 2008) 
 
13.24.030 Senior determination. 
 

A. Senior Single-Family Residential. Senior citizens sixty-two and one-half years or older 
need only submit a Utility Discount Rate Request Form once to receive the discounted 
rate for the duration of their utility account with the City. 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24.030
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24.040
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24.080
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24.090
http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1324.html#13.24.100


3 
 

 
B. Senior, Multi-Family Residential. Multi-family facilities that serve senior clientele are 

eligible to receive senior multi-family residential utility rates. To be eligible to receive 
the Low-income multi-family residential utility rates, the facility must have a minimum 
of seventy percent of their beds dedicated to individuals sixty-five years and older. 

 
13.24.040 Emergency utility customer payment fund. 
 

A. Purpose of the Emergency Fund. The City of North Pole recognizes that residential utility 
customers can encounter emergency situations that make paying their monthly utility 
bills a hardship. To help prevent residential utility customers’ utility accounts becoming 
delinquent, the City has created the Emergency Fund. A residential utility customer 
facing an emergency that could cause them a financial hardship may apply for temporary 
assistance to pay a portion or their entire North Pole utility bill. 

 
B. Contributing to the Emergency Fund. North Pole Utility customers shall be provided with 

the option to contribute to the Emergency Fund. Customers will be provided the option to 
contribute any sum they wish to the Emergency Fund either as an addition to their utility 
payment or as a separate payment. Provision will be provided on monthly utility bills for 
customers to make donations to the Emergency Fund. When terminating their utility 
accounts, customers will be provided the option to transfer all or part of their deposits to 
the Emergency Fund. Contributions to the Emergency Fund are not tax deductible. The 
City at its discretion may make a contribution to the Emergency Fund. Any City funds 
contributed to the Emergency Fund cannot at a later date be withdrawn by the City from 
the fund. 

 
C. Management of Emergency Funds. All funds contributed to the Emergency Fund shall be 

deposited in a dedicated interest earning account wholly separate from the operating 
funds of the City. Emergency Funds can only be used to offset North Pole water and 
sewer utility bills of residential utility customers requesting assistance. Emergency funds 
cannot be used to pay utility assessments; liquidated damages payments; commercial or 
multi-family utility bills; utility tie-in fees; or accounts delinquent for non-emergency 
reasons. The purpose of the Emergency Fund is to provide temporary assistance to utility 
customers facing short-term hardships and not to provide ongoing utility bill subsidies for 
utility customers. Applicants for emergency assistance eligible for the Low-income single 
family residential utility rates will be encouraged to apply for these rates. 

 
D. Awarding of Emergency Funds 

 
1. Emergency Fund committee: An independent committee recommended by the Mayor 

and approved by the City Council shall recommend Emergency Fund awards to utility 
customers applying for assistance to pay their monthly North Pole utility bills. The 
committee shall be composed of no more than seven members, but always an odd 
number. The Director of City Services or his representative shall be an ex officio 
member of the committee. A minimum of a majority of the committee must be 
present at a meeting to recommend an award of Emergency Funds. In the event a 



4 
 

quorum of the committee is unable to meet in time to make award recommendations 
to the Mayor, the Mayor has the authority to make awards without the committee’s 
recommendation. In the event the mayor must make awards without the committee’s 
recommendation, the mayor shall provide a written explanation of the reason he has 
authorized a payment from the Emergency Fund and the criteria he used for making 
the payment authorization. All recommendations made by the committee, mayor 
correspondences authorizing payments and records of payments from the Emergency 
fund shall be maintained by the City Clerk. 

 
a. Guidelines for awarding Emergency Funds 

 
1. Significant decline in household income to 150 percent or below the poverty 

level as defined in 13.24.030 above. 
2. Unexpected major household expenses like medical, emergency home repair, 

emergency automobile repair, etc. 
3. Changes in family status like divorce, separation, or deployment of a military 

spouse. 
4. Other criteria as documents by the committee and/or mayor. 

 
2. Awarding Emergency Funds: The committee can recommend award assistance no 

greater than funds available in the Emergency Fund and cannot recommend awards 
that create a financial liability for the City. No applicant for an Emergency Fund 
award can receive an award that exceeds $125 per month. Awards are not cash 
payments but direct transfers from the Emergency Fund to the North Pole Utility to 
offset the applicant’s utility bill. The committee will make its recommendations in 
writing for awards from the Emergency Fund to the Mayor. The Mayor has final 
authority for approving Emergency Fund awards. 

 
3. Application for Emergency Fund award: A North Pole Utility customer seeking an 

award from the Emergency Fund to help them pay all or part of their North Pole 
Utility bill shall provide a written explanation of why they need an award. The 
explanation shall include the dollar amount of their utility bill and the dollar amount 
of their award request. Applicants shall submit their request for an award no later than 
the 20th of the month. If the 20th of the month falls on a weekend or holiday the 
application is due on the first business day following the 20th. (Ord. 08-25 §2 (part), 
2008) 

 
13.24.050 Meter installation. 
 
Water meters are required on all services connected to the city water system or sewer system. 
Meters shall be installed at the time of service connection to the North Pole Utility and utility 
billing shall begin at the time of service connection. All new construction with access to the city 
water system must install a meter loop to facilitate meter installation. North Pole Utilities will 
furnish an approved meter for each service. The customer shall ensure that North Pole Utilities 
has access to the meter for repair, replacement and performance of maintenance on the meter. All 
meters must be installed in a heated/conditioned space. (Ord. 04-08 §2(part), 2004),(Ord. 01-



5 
 

13,§2(part), 2001); (Ord. 00-16, §2(part), 2000); (Ord. 99-14 §2, 1999); (Ord. 97-18 §3(part), 
1997); (Ord. 96-19 §2(part), 1996); (Ord. 95-21 §2(part), 1995); (Ord. 82 8 §5.E, 1982);(Ord. 
08-25 §2 (part), 2008) 
 
13.24.080 Significant industrial discharger charges. 
 
In addition to the commercial rate cited in Section 13.24.030 020, significant industrial 
dischargers (SID), as defined in subsection C of Section 13.20.010, shall be subject to the 
following added charges: 
 

A. Facilities Replacement Rate. This rate shall offset the cost of the city’s facilities used by 
the SID. These funds will provide for replacing, increasing and/or augmenting the 
facilities so used to accommodate the private and commercial usage originally planned 
for. 

 
1. The following table contains the factors that shall be used in calculating the FRR: 

 LIFE INTEREST  

COMPONENT (Months) (Annum) CRF 

Lift stations 120 7% 0.0116 

Treatment works  240 7% 0.0078 

Sewer lines 480 7% 0.0062 
 

i = Interest rate = 7.00%/year 
CRF = Capital recovery factor (uniform series) 
C = Construction value = Cost of major component 
Qsid = SID flow (k gal./mo.) 
Qdes = Design capacity flow (k gal./mo.) 
FRR = Facilities replacement rate ($/k gal.) 
 
Each major component (lift station, lagoon, sewer line) of the SID flow path shall be 
considered separately as to its design life and SID proportion of flow capacity. The 
aggregate sum of the component shares shall be divided by the estimated total SID 
monthly flow to arrive at a rate. 

 
FRR =  Qsid  x  C  x  CRF  +  for each major component  x  1 
 Qdes         Qsid 
 

The FRR shall be revised whenever there is a significant change in any of the 
affecting factors, but not more than once a year. 

 
B. Additional Treatment Cost. In order to maintain a high quality of treatment and effluent 

discharge to the public waterways, it is the intention of the city to require any SID to 
pretreat their sewage to meet the regulating parameters set forth in this section. If the 



6 
 

SID’s discharge into the city’s system exceeds these parameters due to an accidental 
discharge, the SID shall in addition to the requirements in other sections and any fines 
and penalties, be subject to the following additional treatment charge (ATC): 

 
ATC =  BODsid (excess)  x  R  +  SSsid (excess)  x  R  + °Tsid(deficit)  x  R 
 200 mg/l    166 mg/l    36°F   
where: 
 

BODsid (excess) = BODs of significant industrial discharger’s flow based on city’s 
sampling, minus 200 mg/l. 
SSsid (excess) = Total suspended solids of significant industrial discharger based on 
city’s sampling, minus 166 mg/l. 
Tsid (deficit) = 50°F minus temperature of significant industrial dischargers’ sewage at 
point of connection. 
R = The commercial rate cited in Section 13.24.30. 
 
Duration of ATC shall be from last normal sample to the succeeding normal one as taken 
by the city. All sampling shall be by daily composite (daily average). 
 
This charge applies only when the SID discharge into the city’s system exceeds 200 mg/l 
BODs, and/or 166 mg/l total suspended solids and/or temperature goes below 50°F. (Ord. 
01-16 §2(part), 2001), (ord. 08-05 §2 (part), 2008) 

 
C. Monitoring. In addition to all other charges under this chapter, each SID shall pay a 

monthly monitoring and administration charge per each calendar month based on the 
city’s additional costs to ensure compliance with this section. The charge shall be set out 
in the SID agreement. (Ord. 97-18 §3(part), 1997: Ord. 96-19 §2(part), 1996: Ord. 95-21 
§2(part), 1995: Ord. 93 6 §2(part), 1993; Ord. 88 1 §2(part), 1988; Ord. 87 12 §3(part), 
1987) 

 
13.24.090 Fee for connection to city utility mains. 
 
Any property owner requesting hookup to a city utility main shall file a hookup application with 
the city clerk in accordance with Chapter 13.08. Charges for connection to a city utility main 
shall be as follows: 
Water main $50.00 inspection fee 
Sewer main $50.00 inspection fee 
If Water and Sewer mains are inspected at the same time, the fee shall be $50.00. (Ord. 98-16 
§2(part), 1998); (Ord. 97-18 §3(part), 1997); (Ord. 96-19 §2(part), 1996); (Ord. 95-21 §2(part), 
1995); (Ord. 93 6 §2, 1993); (Ord. 87 12 §3(part), 1987); (Ord. 82 8 §5.G, 1982); (Ord. 08-05 §2 
(part), 2008) 
 
13.24.100 Negotiated rates. 
Rates for special or temporary usage of utility services which are not strictly addressed in this 
chapter shall be established by the city council on an individual case basis. (Ord. 97-18 §3(part), 

http://www.codepublishing.com/ak/northpole/html/NorthPole13/NorthPole1308.html#13.08


7 
 

1997: Ord. 96-19 §2(part), 1996: Ord. 95-21 §2(part), 1995: Ord. 93 6 §2, 1993; Ord. 87 12 
§3(part), 1987; Ord. 82 8 §5.H, 1982) 
 
13.24.110 Flat rates 
 
Customers whose water service is unmetered or whose water meter is non-functional or the 
utility is unable to replace the water meter shall be charged the following flat rates based upon 
their customer class. Customers’ failure to connect to available water and/or sewer service within 
the mandated two-year time period, shall be cause for the property owner to be billed and 
required to pay the applicable monthly water and/or sewer flat rate fee on an ongoing month by 
month basis as per 13.12.090 Compulsory connection to city water and sewer utility. 
 
Monthly water and sewer utility flat rates beginning January 1, 2012 shall be the following: 
 

Customer class Water 

Monthly 
base 
water 
charge 

Sewer 

Monthly 
base 
sewer 
charge 

FRR 
water 

FRR 
sewer 

FRR 
Significant 
Industrial 
Discharger-
Sewer 

 
Total 
monthly 
charge 

Single-family 
residential $50 $5 $50 $5 $5 $5 -- 

 
$120 

Senior single-
family residential $25 $5 $25 $5 $5 $5 -- 

 
$70 

Multi-family 
residential $100 $25 $100 $25 $10 $10 -- 

 
$270 

Senior multi-
family residential $100 $25 $100 $25 $10 $10 -- 

 
$270 

Commercial $200 $25 $200 $25 $20 $20 -- 
 

$490 

Commercial/ 
Significant 
Industrial 
Discharger 

$1,000 $25 $1,000 $25 -- -- $100 

 
 

$2,150 

 
 



Sponsored by: Mayor Douglas Isaacson 
Introduced and Advanced:  February 21, 2012 

Passed:  March 5, 2012 
 

1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 12-05 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 
AMEND TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 
requirement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 
requirements of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 
 
Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 
 
Section 2. Title 13, Chapter 13-28 Lien on Real Estate for Delinquent Utility Payments is 
amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances to read: Lien on Real Estate for Delinquent 
Utility Payments and Account Resolution Procedures. 
 
Section 3. Effective date. 
This ordinance shall become effective upon passage and publication. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 
5th of March 2012. 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor 

 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 









































































































































































































































Introduced By: Mayor Isaacson  
Date:  March 5, 2012 

PASSED 
YES: 
NO: 
Abstained: 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 
 

RESOLUTION 12-03 
 

A RESOLUTION URGING THE ALASKA LEGISLATURE TO REFRAIN 
FROM ENACTING ANY LEGISLATION THAT WOULD INCREASE 

THE STATE’S PENSION LIABILITY 
 
WHEREAS, the State enacted the Public Employee Retirement System (“PERS”) and 

Teacher’s Retirement Systems (“TRS”) in the 1960’s; starting in 1986, the state has reduced 
benefits several times with the most recent changes in 2005: 

 
- Closing the defined benefits (“DB”) programs of PERS and TRS and providing a 

defined contribution (“DC”) program to public employees. 
 
- Capping the PERS rate paid by municipalities to 22% and subsidizing the difference 

between that rate and the actuarial rate with a statewide appropriation so local governments do 
not have to share the full burden with local taxpayers. 

 
- Capping the TRS contribution to 12.56% and again subsidizing the difference between 

that rate and the actuarial rate with a statewide appropriation so local school districts do not 
have to take money out of the classroom in order to pay their rising TRS costs. 

 
WHEREAS, the current statewide liability for PERS & TRS now totals $11 billion; the 

most recent state appropriation for these programs was $470 million and rising in the coming 
year to $610.5 million; and 

 
WHEREAS, there are pending proposals to amend the pension plans that will increase 

benefits, which would limit the state’s ability to properly fund other deserving programs and 
increase the portion paid by municipal employers. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City of North Pole urges the 

legislature to refrain from making any amendments to the PERS and TRS system that would 
increase the costs and liability of the programs. 
 

PASSED and APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum this 5th Day of March, 2012.   
 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kathryn M Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk  



Sponsored by:  Mayor Isaacson 
Introduced and Passed:  March 5, 2012 

 
CITY OF NORTH POLE 

 
RESOLUTION 12-04 

 
RESOLUTION 12-04, A RESOLUTION OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL TO 

ADOPT THE HARTFORD’S SPECIMEN 457(B) PLAN DOCUMENT  
WITHOUT ANY MODIFICATIONS 

 
WHEREAS, the North Pole City Council has previously approved and adopted the City of 
North Pole Deferred Compensation Plan, 457(b), to provide employees of the City of North Pole 
with retirement benefits. 
 
WHEREAS, the North Pole City Council does hereby declare the intention of the City of North 
Pole to continue the Plan, but reserves the right to terminate or amend the Plan at any time. 
 
WHEREAS, the members of the North Pole City Council are hereby jointly and severally 
authorized to take such actions and to execute such documents as they deem necessary or 
desirable in order to carry out the intent of the foregoing resolutions and required under the Plan 
to make the Plan fully effective in accordance with its terms and intent. 
 
 
I DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the North Pole City Clerk/Human Resource Manager of 
the City of North Pole, and the keeper of its records and seal. 
 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that the above is a true, correct and complete extract of a resolution 
adopted at a duly called and held meeting of the North Pole City Council, and that said 
resolutions are still in effect and have not been modified or revised and are not in conflict with 
the Charter of the City of North Pole. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and the seal of the City of North Pole. 
 
 
 
 
             
      Signature 
 
 SEAL 

 
 

      City Clerk/HR Manager___________________ 
      Title  



Sponsored by:  Mayor Isaacson 
Introduced and Passed:  March 5, 2012 

 
 

CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA 
 

RESOLUTION 12-05 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO 
ISSUE CITY OF NORTH POLE GENERAL OBLIGATION SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT REFUNDING BONDS, 2012 IN THE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $835,000 TO REFUND CERTAIN 
OUTSTANDING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS OF THE CITY, 
FIXING CERTAIN DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND AUTHORIZING 
THEIR SALE, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of North Pole, Alaska (the "City") is a municipal corporation 
authorized to take the actions set forth in this resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there is now outstanding the principal amount of $835,000 of Special 
Assessment Bonds, Series 2005 of the City(the "2005 Bonds") maturing on or after May 1, 2016 
issued under Ordinance No. 2005-02 of the City; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City to provide for 
the refunding, including the payment of principal of and interest on, those maturities of the 2005 
Bonds (the "Refunded Bonds") whose refunding the Mayor or Accountant determines will 
produce the debt service savings specified in this resolution, by the issuance of refunding bonds 
in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $835,000 (the "Bonds"); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is necessary and appropriate to delegate to 
each of the Mayor and Accountant authority to determine the maturity amounts, interest rates 
and other details of the Bonds, and to determine other matters pertaining to the Bonds that are 
not provided for in this resolution; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank and the City intend to enter into an 
Amendatory Loan Agreement, which amends the Loan Agreement dated as of May 1, 2005 
between the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank and the City to provide for the refunding of the 2005 
Bonds through their exchange for refunding bonds to be issued by the City, and related matters.   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
SECTION 1.  Definitions.  The following terms shall have the following meanings in this 
resolution:   
 

(A) "Accountant" means the Accountant of the City. 
 

 (B) "Amendatory Loan Agreement" means the Amendatory Loan Agreement between 
the City and the Bond Bank, amending the Loan Agreement to provide for the refunding of the 
Refunded Bonds through their exchange for the Bonds, and related matters.   
 



2 
  

 (C) "Bond" or "Bonds" means any of the "Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, 
2012" of the City, the issuance and sale of which are authorized herein.   
 
 (D) "Bond Bank" means the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank, a public corporation of the 
State of Alaska.   
 
 (E) "Bond Bank Bonds" means the General Obligation Refunding Bonds, 2012 Series 
[Two] of the Bond Bank.   
 
 (F)  "Bond Register" means the registration books maintained by the Registrar, which 
include the names and addresses of the Registered Owners of the Bonds or their nominees.   
 
 (G)  "City" means the City of North Pole, a municipal corporation of the State of 
Alaska, organized under Title 29 of the Alaska Statutes. 
 
 (H) "City Council" means the City Council of the City of North Pole, as the general 
legislative authority of the City, as the same shall be duly and regularly constituted from time to 
time.   
 (I)  "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to time, 
together with all regulations applicable thereto.   
 
 (J)  "District" means the special assessment district of the City, known as the 
Stillmeyer Street Improvement Assessment District.   
 
 (K) "Loan Agreement" means the Loan Agreement between the City and the Bond 
Bank dated as of May 1, 2005, as amended by the Amendatory Loan Agreement.   
 
 (L) "Refunded Bonds" means the maturities of the 2005 Bonds whose refunding is 
approved by the Mayor or Accountant under Section 12.   
 
 (M) "Registered Owner" means the person named as the registered owner of a Bond in 
the Bond Register.   
 
 (N) "Registrar" means the Accountant.   
 
 (O) "Resolution" means this Resolution of the City Council.   
 
  
 (P) "2005 Bonds" means the $825,000 principal amountof Special Assessment 
Bonds, Series 2005 of the City.   
 
SECTION 2.  Authorization of Bonds and Purpose of Issuance.  For the purpose of effecting the 
refunding by exchange of the Refunded Bonds in the manner set forth hereinafter and in the 
Amendatory Loan Agreement, the City hereby authorizes and determines to issue and sell the 
Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of not to exceed $835,000. 
 
SECTION 3.  Obligation of Bonds.  The Bonds are a special obligation of the District and are 



3 
  

payable first from assessments levied against the properties which are specially benefitted by the 
Project within the District and the full faith and credit of the City is pledged for the payment of 
the Bonds under this ordinance as a general obligation of the City.   
 
SECTION 4.  Designation, Maturities, Interest Rates, and Other Details of Bonds.  The Bonds 
shall be designated "City of North Pole Assessment Refunding Bonds, 2012."  The Bonds shall 
be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, shall be numbered separately 
in the manner and with such additional designation as the Registrar deems necessary for 
purposes of identification, and may have endorsed thereon such legends or text as may be 
necessary or appropriate to conform to the rules and regulations of any governmental authority or 
any usage or requirement of law with respect thereto.   
 
 The dated date, the principal and interest payment dates, the aggregate principal amount, 
the principal amount of each maturity, and the interest rates on the Bonds shall be determined at 
the time of execution of the Amendatory Loan Agreement as authorized under Section 16.   
 
SECTION 5.  Redemption.  The Bonds are subject to redemption as described in the Loan 
Agreement.  
 
SECTION 6.  Form of Bond.  Each Bond shall be in substantially the following form, with such 
variations, omissions and insertions as may be required or permitted by this Resolution:   
 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF ALASKA 

 
CITY OF NORTH POLE 

(A Municipal Corporation of the State of Alaska) 
 

NO.____ $____________ 
 

 
 

 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTREFUNDING BONDS, 2012 

 
REGISTERED OWNER: 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: 
 
 
 

The City of North Pole, Alaska (the "City"), a municipal corporation of the State of 
Alaska, hereby acknowledges itself to owe and for value received promises to pay to the 
Registered Owner identified above, or its registered assigns, the Principal Amount indicated 
above in the following installments on ___________ of each of the following years, and to pay 
interest on such installments from the date hereof, payable on ________,20__and semiannually 
thereafter on the first days of ____ and _______of each year, at the rates per annum as follows: 
 



4 
  

 
Year 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

   
 

For so long as this Bond is owned by the Alaska Municipal Bond Bank (the "Bank"), 
payment of principal and interest shall be made as provided in the Loan Agreement between the 
Bank and the Citydated as of May 1, 2005, as amended by the Amendatory Loan Agreement 
dated ______________ (together, the "Loan Agreement"). In the event that this Bond is no 
longer owned by the Bank, installments of principal of and interest on this Bond shall be made 
by check or draft mailed by first class mail to the registered owner as of the close of business on 
the fifteenth day of the month preceding each installment payment date; provided that the final 
installment of principal and interest on this Bond will be payable upon presentation and 
surrender of this Bond by the Registered Owner at the office of the Registrar.  Interest shall be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year composed of twelve 30-day months.  Both principal of 
and interest on this bond are payable in lawful money of the United States of America which, on 
the respective dates of payment thereof, shall be legal tender for the payment of public and 
private debts. 
 

This Bond is a general obligation of the City for which its full faith and credit is pledged 
and is one of the Special Assessment Refunding Bonds, 2012of the City of North Pole, Alaska of 
like tenor and effect except as to interest rate, serial number and maturity, aggregating $______ 
in principal amount, and constituting bonds authorized for the purpose of refunding certain 
special assessment bonds issued by the City, and is issued under Resolution 2012-__ of the City 
entitled: 

 
 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO 
ISSUE CITY OF NORTH POLE GENERAL OBLIGATION SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT REFUNDING BONDS, 2012 IN THE PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF NOT TO EXCEED $835,000 TO REFUND CERTAIN 
OUTSTANDING SPECIAL ASSESSMENT BONDS OF THE CITY, 
FIXING CERTAIN DETAILS OF SUCH BONDS AND AUTHORIZING 
THEIR SALE, AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS 

 
(herein called the "Resolution"). 
 

The Bond is subject to redemption prior to maturity as described in the Loan Agreement. 
 

This Bond is transferable as provided in the Resolution, (i) only upon the bond register of 
the City, and (ii) upon surrender of this Bond together with a written instrument of transfer duly 
executed by the registered owner or the duly authorized attorney of the registered owner, and 
thereupon a new fully registered Bond or Bonds in the same aggregate principal amount and 
maturity shall be issued to the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Resolution and 
upon the payment of charges, if any, as therein prescribed.  The City may treat and consider the 
person in whose name this Bond is registered as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of 
receiving payment of, or on account of, the principal or redemption price, if any, hereof and 
interest due hereon and for all other purposes whatsoever. 



5 
  

 
IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that all conditions, acts or things required 

by the constitution or statutes of the State of Alaska and the ordinances of the City to exist, to 
have happened or to have been performed precedent to or in the issuance of this Bond, exist, 
have happened and have been performed, and that the series of Bonds of which this is one, 
together with all other indebtedness of the City, is within every debt and other limit prescribed 
by said constitution, statutes, or ordinances. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA, has caused this 
Bond to be signed in its name and on its behalf by its Mayor and its corporate seal to be hereunto 
impressed or otherwise reproduced and attested by its Clerk, all as of the ____ day of 
____________, 2012. 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Douglas W. Isaacson 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Kathryn Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk 
 
SECTION 7.  Execution.  The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the City by the Mayor or 
his designee, and its corporate seal shall be impressed or otherwise reproduced thereon and 
attested by the City Clerk.  The execution of a Bond on behalf of the City by persons who at the 
time of the execution are duly authorized to hold the proper offices shall be valid and sufficient 
for all purposes, although any such person shall have ceased to hold office at the time of 
authentication of the Bond or shall not have held office on the date of the Bond.   
 
SECTION 8.  Payment of Principal and Interest.  The Bonds shall be payable in lawful money 
of the United States of America which at the time of payment is legal tender for the payment of 
public and private debts.  As long as the Bond Bank is the Registered Owner of the Bonds, 
payment of principal and interest on the Bonds shall be made as provided in the Loan 
Agreement.  If the Bond Bank is no longer the Registered Owner of the Bonds, installments of 
principal and interest on the Bonds shall be paid by check mailed by first class mail to the 
Registered Owner as of the fifteenth day of the month preceding each installment payment date 
at the address appearing on the Bond Register; provided that the final installment of principal 
and interest on a Bond shall be payable upon presentation and surrender of the Bond by the 
Registered Owner at the office of the Registrar.   
 
SECTION 9.  Registration.  The Bonds shall be issued only in registered form as to both 
principal and interest.  The City designates the Accountant as Registrar for the Bonds.  The 
Registrar shall keep, or cause to be kept, the Bond Register at the principal office of the City.  



6 
  

The City covenants that, until all Bonds have been surrendered and canceled, it will maintain a 
system for recording the ownership of each Bond that complies with the provisions of Section 
149 of the Code.  The City and the Registrar may treat the person in whose name any Bond shall 
be registered as the absolute owner of such Bond for all purposes, whether or not the Bond shall 
be overdue, and all payments of principal of and interest on a Bond made to the Registered 
Owner thereof or upon its order shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability 
upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid, and neither the City nor the Registrar 
shall be affected by any notice  to the contrary.   
 
SECTION 10.  Transfer and Exchange.  Bonds shall be transferred only upon the books for the 
registration and transfer of Bonds kept at the office of the Registrar.  Upon surrender for transfer 
or exchange of any Bond at such office, with a written instrument of transfer or authorization for 
exchange in form and with guaranty of signature satisfactory to the Registrar, duly executed by 
the Registered Owner or the duly authorized attorney of the Registered Owner, the City shall 
execute and deliver an equal aggregate principal amount of Bonds of the same maturity of any 
authorized denominations, subject to such reasonable regulations as the City may prescribe and 
upon payment sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to 
be paid in connection with such transfer or exchange.  All Bonds surrendered for transfer or 
exchange shall be canceled by the Registrar.   
 
SECTION 11.  Bonds Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost.  Upon surrender to the Registrar of 
a mutilated Bond, the City shall execute and deliver a new Bond of like maturity and principal 
amount.  Upon filing with the Registrar of evidence satisfactory to the City that a Bond has been 
destroyed, stolen or lost and of the ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the City with 
indemnity satisfactory to it, the City shall execute and deliver a new Bond of like maturity and 
principal amount.  The person requesting the execution and delivery of a new Bond under this 
section shall comply with such other reasonable regulations as the City may prescribe and pay 
such expenses as the City may incur in connection therewith.   
 
SECTION 12.  Designation of Refunded Bonds.  The Mayor and the Accountant each is 
authorized to designate which maturities of 2005 Bonds authorized to be refunded in this 
Resolution shall be refunded, provided that the refunding of the 2005 Bonds so designated shall 
realize a debt service savings of at least 3%, net of all issuance costs and underwriting discount, 
on a present value basis.   
 
SECTION 13.  Tax Covenants.  The City covenants to comply with any and all applicable 
requirements set forth in the Code in effect from time to time to the extent that such compliance 
shall be necessary for the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal 
income tax purposes.  The City covenants that it will make no use of the proceeds of the Bonds 
which will cause the Bonds or the Refunded Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" subject to federal 
income taxation by reason of section 148 of the Code. The City covenants that it will not take or 
permit any action that would cause the Bonds to be "private activity bonds" as defined in Section 
141 of the Code.   
 



7 
  

SECTION 14.  Amendatory and Supplemental Resolutions.   
 
 (A)  The City Council from time to time and at any time may adopt a resolution or 
resolutions supplemental hereto, which resolution or resolutions thereafter shall become a part of 
this resolution, for any one or more of the following purposes:   
 
  (1)  To add to the covenants and agreements of the City in this Resolution, other 
covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed, or to surrender any right or power herein 
reserved to or conferred upon the City.   
 
  (2)  To make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguities or of 
curing, correcting or supplementing any defective provision contained in this Resolution or in  
regard to matters or questions arising under this Resolution as the City Council may deem 
necessary or desirable and not inconsistent with this Resolution and which shall not adversely 
affect the interests of the Registered Owners of the Bonds.   
 
 Any such supplemental resolution may be adopted without the consent of the Registered 
Owner of any of the Bonds at any time outstanding, notwithstanding any of the provisions of 
subsection (B) of this section.   
 
 (B)  With the consent of the Registered Owners of not less than 60 percent in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds at the time outstanding, the City Council may adopt a resolution 
or resolutions supplemental hereto for the purpose of adding any provisions to or changing in 
any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of this Resolution or of any supplemental 
resolution; provided, however, that no such supplemental resolution shall:   
 
  (1)  extend the fixed maturity of any of the Bonds, or reduce the rate of interest 
thereon, or extend the time of payments of interest from their due date, or reduce the amount of 
the principal thereof, or reduce any premium payable on the redemption thereof, without the 
consent of the Registered Owners of each Bond so affected; or  
 
  (2)  reduce the aforesaid percentage of Registered Owners of Bonds required to 
approve any such supplemental resolution without the consent of the Registered Owners of all of 
the Bonds then outstanding.   
 
 It shall not be necessary for the consent of the Registered Owners of the Bonds under this 
subsection to approve the particular form of any proposed supplemental resolution, but it shall be 
sufficient if such consent approves the substance thereof.   
 
 (C)  Upon the adoption of any supplemental resolution under this section, this Resolution 
shall be deemed to be modified and amended in accordance therewith, and the respective rights, 
duties and obligations under this Resolution of the City and all Registered Owners of outstanding 
Bonds shall thereafter be subject in all respects to such modification and amendment, and all the 
terms and conditions of the supplemental resolution shall be deemed to be part of the terms and 
conditions of this Resolution for any and all purposes.   



8 
  

 
 (D)  Bonds executed and delivered after the execution of any supplemental resolution 
adopted under this section may bear a notation as to any matter provided for in such 
supplemental resolution, and if such supplemental resolution shall so provide, new Bonds 
modified so as to conform, in the opinion of the City, to any modification of this Resolution 
contained in any such supplemental resolution may be prepared by the City and delivered 
without cost to the Registered Owners of the Bonds then outstanding, upon surrender for 
cancellation of such Bonds in equal aggregate principal amounts.   
 
SECTION 15.  Defeasance.  In the event money and/or non-callable direct obligations of, or 
obligations the timely payment of principal of and interest on which are unconditionally 
guaranteed by, the United States of America or an agency or instrumentality of the United States 
of America, maturing at such times and bearing interest to be earned thereon in amounts 
sufficient to redeem and retire any or all of the Bonds in accordance with their terms are set aside 
in a special trust account to effect such redemption or retirement and such moneys and the 
principal of and interest on such obligations are irrevocably set aside and pledged for such 
purpose, then no further payments need be made to pay or secure the payment of the principal of 
and interest on such Bonds and such Bonds shall be deemed not to be outstanding.   
 
SECTION 16.  Exchange of Bonds; Amendatory Loan Agreement.  The Bonds shall be 
delivered to the Bond Bank in exchange for the Refunded Bonds.  The City has been advised by 
the Bond Bank that bond market conditions are fluctuating and that the most favorable market 
conditions for the sale of the Bond Bank Bonds may not occur on the date of a regular City 
Council meeting.  The City Council has determined that it would be inconvenient to hold a 
special meeting on short notice to approve the terms of the Bonds. Therefore, the City Council 
hereby determines that it is in the best interest of the City to delegate the authority to approve the 
terms of the Bonds as provided herein.  Each of the Mayor and the Accountant is hereby 
authorized to determine the aggregate principal amount, maturity amounts, interest rates, yields, 
dated date, principal and interest payment dates, and redemption terms, if any, for the Bonds, so 
that such terms of the Bonds conform to the terms of the corresponding Bond Bank Bonds; 
provided that (I) the principal amount of each maturity of the Bonds shall not exceed the 
principal amount of the portion of the corresponding maturity of the Bond Bank Bonds that is 
allocated to the making of a loan to the City; and (ii) the interest rate on each maturity of the 
Bonds shall not exceed the interest rate on the corresponding maturity of the Bond Bank Bonds.  
Based upon the foregoing determinations, the Mayor and the Accountant each is authorized to 
negotiate and execute an Amendatory Loan Agreement.  The authority granted to the Mayor and 
Accountant by this section shall expire 180 days after the effective date of this Resolution.  If the 
Mayor or Accountant has not executed an Amendatory Loan Agreement within 180 days from 
the effective date of this Resolution, the Amendatory Loan Agreement may not be executed on 
behalf of the City without further authorization from the City Council.   
 
SECTION 17.  Authority of Officers.  The Mayor and the Accountant, and the City Clerk are, 
and each of them hereby is, authorized and directed to do and perform all things and determine 
all matters not determined by this Resolution, to the end that the City may carry out its 
obligations under the Bonds and this Resolution.   
 



9 
  

SECTION 18.  Miscellaneous.   
 
 (A)  All payments made by the City of, or on account of, the principal of or interest on 
the Bonds shall be made on the several Bonds ratably and in proportion to the amount due 
thereon, respectively, for principal or interest as the case may be.   
 
 (B)  No recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal of or the interest on the 
Bonds or for any claim based thereon or on this Resolution against any member of the City 
Council or officer of the City or any person executing the Bonds.  The Bonds are not and shall 
not be in any way a debt or liability of the State of Alaska or of any political subdivision thereof, 
except the City, and do not and shall not create or constitute an indebtedness or obligation, either 
legal, moral or otherwise, of said state or of any political subdivision thereof, except the City.   
 
SECTION 19.  Continuing Disclosure.  The City hereby covenants and agrees that it will 
execute and carry out all of the provisions of a Continuing Disclosure Certificate in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Bond Bank.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Resolution, failure of the City to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall not be 
considered a default of the City's obligations under this Resolution or the Bonds; however, the 
beneficial owner of any Bond or Bond Bank Bond may bring an action for specific performance, 
to cause the City to comply with its obligations under this section.   
 
SECTION 20.  Severability.  If any one or more of the provisions of this Resolution shall be 
declared by any court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such provision shall 
be null and void and shall be deemed separable from the remaining provisions of this Resolution 
and shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of this Resolution or of the Bonds.   
 
SECTION 21.  Effective Date.  This resolution shall take effect upon adoption by the City 
Council.   
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 
5th day of March, 2012. 
 
 

_______________________________ 
Douglas W. Isaacson, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 
North Pole City Clerk 


	AG-03-05-12
	Min-02-21-12
	DAR Proclamation
	Womens History Month Proclamation
	Ord 12-01 Amend Title 13 Administrative Provisions
	Ord 12-02 Amend Title 13 Customer Service
	Ord 12-03 Amend Title 13 Water Services
	Ord 12-04 Title 13 Amend Utility Rates
	Ord 12-05 Amend Title 13 Public Services
	IIMC Clerk Funding
	Ord 12-06 Bldg & Constr- Administrative Code
	Ord 12-07 Bldg & Constr- Building Code
	Ord 12-08 Bldg & Constr- Residential Code
	Ord 12-09 Bldg & Constr- Mechanical Code
	Ord 12-10 Bldg & Constr- Electrical Code
	Ord 12-11 Bldg & Constr- Plumbing Code
	Ord 12-12 Bldg & Const- Fire Code
	Ord 12-13 Bldg & Constr- Fuel Gas Code
	Ord 12-14 Bldg & Constr- Energy Code
	Res 12-03 PERS
	Res 12-04 Hartfords 457
	Res 12-05 Refunding Bonds

